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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

) 603-271-9544 '1-800-852-3345 Ext. 0544
Fax: 603-271-4332  TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

Katja 8. Fox.
Director

September 3, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Staté House ‘

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendmentto an existing contract with The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire DBA Center for Life Management (VC#1741 16) Derry, NH, for the continued
provision of housing services continuum of care projects, and to implement a Coordinated Entry project,
by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $3,133,451 from $4,400,280
to $7,533,731 and extending the completion date from July 31, 2027 to June 30, 2029, effective
retroactive to July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds,

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 28, 2023, item #38.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Years 2026 through 2029, upon the availability and continued appropriatién of
funds in the future operating budget, with'the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances batween state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMARN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING,; HOUSING — SHELTER PROGRAW

Increased

- State Class / ' ) Job Current . Revised
Fiscal | account Class Title Number | Budget | (Decreased) Budget
Year | - ' T Amount |
2024 | 074-500589 | GrantsforPub | inte | $1,033.341 $0{  $1,033,349
_ Asst and Relief
-l . Grants for Pub '
2025 -074-500589 Asstand Relief | 42307050 | $1,100,070 $193,668 $1,2§;,738
Grants for Pub ‘
2026 | 074-500589 | 370 LIS | 42307050 | $1,100,070 $2o1,§93 $1,3.Q1,663
' , : " Grants for Pub :
- 2027 :074~5f30589 Asst and Relief | 42307050 | $1,100,070 | $201,593 $ji,301,663
: Grants for Pl..lb. .
2028 | 074-500589 | L1505 | Relief 42307050 $66,729 |  $1,234934 |  $1,301,663
2029 | 074-500589 | "GrantsforPub | .o 000 $0|  $1,301,863| $1,301.663
' ; Asst and Relief _ e ’_ e
| Subtotal | $4,400,280 |  $3,133451|  $7,533,731




His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive due to the timing of the federal notice of award for these funds and
to align with the project start date as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires allamendments to agreements originally
approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Federal regulations require all procurement
efforts for these services to be directed by HUD through an annual Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive
application process. The Department must contract with the vendor selected as a result of this HUD
process. HUD awarded New Hampshire .additional funding for the Permanent Supportive Housing and
Coordinated Entry projects on May 20, 2024.

The purpose of this request is to increase funding and add scope to support the Contractor's
continued delivery of Permanent Supportive Housing as well as expand service provision through a
Coordinated Entry project. '

The Contractor, using the federally required Housing First model, will continue to deliver
Permanent Supportive Housing services offering long-term rental and leasing assistance for participants
with a disability, as defined by HUD. Coordinated Entry utilizes a trauma-informed approach and active
techniques, such as street outreach, to engage and support diverse populations. This program will
provide a streamlinéd approach to engage participants and assess their housing, service, and case
. management needs. Approximately 65 households will be served, at any given time annually, through

the Permanent -Supportive Housing program, and a range of 100-200 may be served through the
Coordinated Entry project. . :

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reporis provided by the
.Contractor and -conducting annual reviews related .to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1)
yearand 11 months of the fouf (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and. supportive services available, which may lead to vulnerable individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal
funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs. -

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #NH0003L1T002316,
NH0014L1T002316 and NHO096L 1T002308. ' . ;

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer availablé, General Funds will not be

requested to support this program.
Regpactfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporiunities for citizens to achieve health and independence,
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Department") and The Mental Health Center for
Southiern New Hampshire DBA Center for Life Management ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Councn
on June 28, 2023 (Item #38) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certam sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1.

Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2029

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$7,5633,731

Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacmg it in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment
#1, Scope of Serwces which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1.1, to read:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on March 28, 2023, by the US Dept of
Housing and Urban Development, Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing #
14.267, FAIN. NHO003L1T002215, NHOO14L1T002215 NHO003L1T0023186,
NHO014L1T002316 and NHOO96L1T002308.

Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-8, Budget by replacing them in their entirety with
Exhibit C-1 Budget, Amendment #1 through Exhibit C-8, Budget Amendment #1, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Add Exhibit C-9 Budget, Amendment #1, through Exhibit C-16 budgét, Amendment #1, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. .

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire

. C
DBA Center for Life Management ' " AS13 Contractor Initials

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3

v7.12.23

8/29/2024
ate
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AII terms and -conditions '-of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and
effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
- State of New Hampshire
Department-of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:

8/29/2024 aS. For
- - ZABFECTDB1684F3 .,
Date Name: Katja $. Fox

Title: pipector

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

DacuSigned by:

8/29/2024 | Vit Tops
' DAAATESCIEACAGA. .
Date Name;Vic Topo
Title: ceo

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-S-1.3

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 ‘ Page 2 of 3
v. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been r&Viewe.d;iby;’th’i‘s:éfﬁce;%is:ﬁap,ﬂlzoved;as.’eto‘éfcrm,;substance, and
execution. )

. ‘OFFICEOF THE ATTORNEY IBENERAL

. Deeulignediby: -
8/30/2024 | [ﬁmﬂm.@mum
N TABT34BAAG41460..,
Date . Name:RoByn GHarino

Title: artorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: . (date of meeting)
} OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Date . Name:
Title:
) .

’ 4
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management A-8-1.3
58-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 Page 30f 3

v, 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #1

1. Statement of Work

Scope of Services

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) (Effective July 1, 2023 except Section

1.1.1.3)

1.1.1.1.

1.1.1.2.

1.1.1.3.

1.1.1.4,

1.1.1.5.

1.1.1.8.

1.11.7.

1.1.1.8.

1.1.1.9.

The Contractor must provide PSH, whigh is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Contractor must
provide assistance to program participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the project or is terminated from the project as
determined by HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578

The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program (herein Family Housing | — FH1), in this agreement, that

is targeted to serve 13 households comprised of 37 individuals.

The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program (herein Supportive Housing — SH), effective August 1,
2023, in this agreement, that is targeted to serve 52 individuals.

The Contractor must provide tenant-based rental assistance
through the FH1 and SH programs that is permitted for greater than
24 months, does not have- a designated end date, and must be
administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum, as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a)(9).
Tenant based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside.

The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet
the needs of the program participants.

The Contractor must ensure that program participants are not
required to participate in supportive services as a condition of their
housing. -

The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in or
help in obtaining permanent housing, including all supportive.
services, regardless of funding.

The Contractor must assign a case manager to each participant
upon program entry. ' )

The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not

§8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials.
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, Page 1 of 10 Date 8/29/2024

DBA Center for Life Management
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.1.1.9.1.
1.1.1.9.2.

1.1.1.9.3.

Increasing both earned and non-earned income;

Ensuring that program participants receive individual

assistance in obtaining the benefits of mainstream

health, social, and employment programs for which

they are eligible to apply and that meet their needs:;
and

Maintaining permanent housing or facilitating exits to
positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.10. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service
needs of the program participants and adjust the services

accordingly.

1.1.2.  Coordinated Entry (CE) (Effective July 1, 2024)

1.1.2.1.  The Contractor must ensure the implementation of a Coordinated
Entry System (the CE System), in accordance with the Continuum
of Care (CoC) Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as
amended, in this agreement.

1.1.2.2.  The Contractor must ensure the project: '

1.1.2.2.1.
1.12.2.2.

1:1.2.2.3.

Provides participants with quick access to the most
appropriate  services and housing resources
available. ‘ :

Incorporates cultural and linguistic competencies in
all  engagement, assessment, and referral
coordination activities.

Operates a person-centered approach and with
person-centered outcomes.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must act as the Regional Access Point for the
- designated area (Western Rockingham County) for the CE System.

1.1.2.3.1.

The Contractor must ensure all Regional Access
Points conduct an initial screening of risk or potential

harm perpetrated’ on participants as a result of

domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, or dating
violence. In the event a defined risk is deemed to be
present, the Contractor must ensure participants are
referred or linked to available specialized services
and housing assistance, using a trauma-informed
approach designed to address the particular service
needs of survivars of abuse, neglect, and violence.

1.1.2.4.  The Contractor must ensure that there are staff responsible for
supporting or managing the day to day functions of the CE Svggem,

85-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-AD1

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

B-2.0 N Contractor Initials Q

Page 2 of 19 Date 8/29/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: DOAFESAA-B7E0-4F36-8ABF-FB73855C85CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.1.2.5.

11286,

1.1.2.7.

1.1.2.8.

1.1.2.9.

1.1.2.10.

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01

The Mental Health Center for Southarn New Hampshire, Page 3 of 19 Date

DBA Center for Life Management

which may include any combination of the following: maintaining a
prioritization list; assisting with matching participants to available
housing resources; communicating referrals; facilitating case
conferencing meetings; assisting with grievance and . appeal

- processes; monitoring CE activity; and preparing CE monitoring

and evaluation reports.

The Contractor must review and sign the New Hampshire
Coordinated Entry Partnership Agreement, which outlines the
standards and expectations for participation in and compliance with
policies and procedures which govern the CE System operations.

The Contractor must affirmatively market their housing and
supportive services to eligible individuals regardless of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, or disability who
are least likely to apply in the absence of special outreach, and
maintain records of those marketing activities.

The Contractor must post, or otherwise make publicly available, a
notice, as provided by the CoC described in Section 1.1.2.1., that
describes the CE System. The Contractor must ensure that the
notice is posted in the agency waiting areas, as well as any areas
where participants may congregate or receive services (e.g., dining
hall). The Contractor must ensure that all staff at each agency know
which personnel within their agency can discuss and explain the
CE System to participants seeking more information.

The Contractor must ensure all services provided are physically
accessible to persons with mobility barriers. The Contractor must
ensure that all CE System communications and documentation are
accessible to persons with limited ability to read and understand
English.

The Contractor must ensure that all persons who are fleeing or
attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking have immediate and confidential access to
available crisis services within. the defined CE System geographic
area as described in Section 1.1.2.3.

The Contractor must ensure that all persons served by the CE
System are assessed using the approved CoC Coordinated Entry
Assessment tool. The Contractor must use this tool to ensure that
all persons served are assessed in a consistent manner, using the
same process. The Contractor must:

1.1.2.10.1.  Ensure that participant assessment information is
updated at least once a year if the participant is
served by the CE System for more than 12 months.

Staff may update participant records WEUD‘F‘ W

B-2.0 ' Contractor [nitials
8/29/2024
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.

-I\Il_ew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
\jeo.gtingun]‘ngare CLM

. “2..._  EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1
| \;__, S R . information as new or updated information becomes
' — known by staff; and =~ "~ -

- . Wn - N . :
0 -14.2,10.2-  Conduct__assessments /m_\a::cordance with the

>~ policies and procedures’ of the~CE_System. The
~ assessment process will progressively collect only
enough-partiCipant-information_tS:prioritize and refer
participants to available CoC housing and -support
services: S
1.1.2.11.  The Contractor must manage CoC's regional prioritization list. New
participants will be added to the prioritization list and existing—
participants’ rank order on the prioritization list will be managed
according to the prioritization principles established by the CoC's
written policies and procedures governing CE System operations
and decision-making.

1.1.2.12. The Contractor must collect accurate and meaningful data on
persons served by the CE System, review evaluation results, and
offer insights about potential improvements to CE System
processes and operations.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the
approved HUD Project Application #SF-424. '

1.2.2.  The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, Bf
' the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1.2.3.  The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.5. - The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Department.

A

1.26. The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the-program includes, but is not limited to:
1.2.7.1.  Utilization of the Housing First mode! that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws:
and .

1.2.7.12.  Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing

. :DS
$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 _ Contracter Initials

The Mental Health Center for Southermn New Hampshire, Page 4 of 19 Date 8/29/2024

DBA Center for Life Management
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #1

1.2.8.

1.2.9.

1.2.10.

1.2.11.

1212

are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91,

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of -Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental hea!th and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1.  Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed.
resource provision;

1.28.2.  Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housmg and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3.  Participants are empowered by Contractor’s program to increase
safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants. are offered connections to assistance in applying for
- Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to educat|on resources,
school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the
program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance
misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance |dent1f ed by the participant.

The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants’ connections with
community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

The Coniractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested’by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state pohmes and federa[ regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.212.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files:

:Ds
58-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 ’ B-2.0 Contractor [nitials

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, Page"s of 19 Date

8/29/2024

DBA Center for Life Management
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBITB ~ Amendment #1

1.2.13.

12.14.

1.2.15.

1.2.16.

1.217.

1.2.18.

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department
and/ or HUD; and

1.212.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
" compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFER Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. Thesé rights
of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as

_the records are retained.

The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendmentis thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness. qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency K Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009,
hitps://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF: -

1.218.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
‘ client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDVE :
v

58-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 . " B-20 Contractor iniliale

The Mentat Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, Page 6 of 19 Date

8/29/2024

D8A Center for Life Management
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

_ Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #1

hitp://alhrn.org/wordpress 1/wo-

content/uploads/201 8/08/Comparable-Database-for-DV-

NNEDV.pdf.

1.2.18.3. The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit | for Privacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all reco?d—keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but not

limited to:

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Confractor must maintain the

following documentation related to establishing and operating a

CoC:
1.2.20.1.1,

1.2.20.1.2.

1.2.20.1.3.

58-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

Records of Homeless Status, The Contractor must
maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

Records of at Risk_of Homelessness Status. The .
Contractor must maintain records that establish “at
risk of homelessness” status of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of
Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation
of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)}(3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

1.2.20.1.3.1. The original ‘incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a_virtim

Ui

8/29/2024

B-2.0 Contractor [nitials
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New Hamps‘ﬁire Departmént of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #1

service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, . pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.2.20.1.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent
threat of further. domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider;, a letter or other
documentation from a victim service
provider, social  worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text .
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified"" by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

:DS .
85-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 : Confractor Initials

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, Page 8 of 19 Date 8/29/2024

DBA Center for Life Management



Dacusign Envelope 1D: DIAFEBAA-B7E(-4F36-8ABF-F873855C85CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #1

122022,

1.2.20.2.3.

1.2.20.2.4.

Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement:

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement; -

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4, Income received before the date of the
evaluation. '

To the extent that source documents are
unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include ah employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or :

To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program __Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as
applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1.

1.2.20.3.2.

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01

The Mental Health Center for Southérm New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of
services for those program participants that remain in

the program for more than a yéar and adjusted the

service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii}(F); and .

Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

:DS
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1.2.20.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participanis was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
- ) 578.95(c);

1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict- of~|nterest requ:rements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.22. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.2.23.1. The homeless participation reguirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requ1rements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program:;

1.2.23.4.  Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable:

1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6., Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR bart 84.

LS

1.2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures {o ensure:

1.2.24.1.  All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

J :ns
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1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipiéent and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.3. Contract Administration

1.3.1.

1.3.2.

The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
trainings requested by the Department’s Bureau. 6f Homeless Services (BHS),

including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and
federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the-
need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within
thirty (30} days of the change.

1.4. Repdrti'ng Requirements

1.4.1.

1.4.2.

1.4.3.

1.44.

1.4.5.

.The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the

form required, or specified, by the Department.
The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH DHHS ) -
Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results
of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor’s
application submitted to HUD for the relevant flscal year COC Notice of

Funding Opportunity (NOFO).

The Confractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department,
in a format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

1.5. Background Checks

1.5.1.

Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

' :ns
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1.5.1.1.  Acriminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;

1.5.1.2. A name search of the Department’s Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and

1.5.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that couid endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.6. Confidential Data

1.7.

1.6.1.

1.6.2.

The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements
as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department’s information
Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view,
store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws
and regulations. and the Department's Information Security Requiréments
Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable
business need to access confidential data. The Contractor must provide
attestations upon Department request. )

Privacy Impact Assessment

1.7.1.

1.7.2.

Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a. Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA)  of its
system(s)/application{s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (PlI) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

1.7.1.1.  How Pl is gathered and stored:

1.7.1.2.  Who will have access to PIl: _

1.7.1.3.  How PIl will be used in the system;

1.7.1.4.  How individual consent will be achieved and revoked: and
1.7.1.5.  Privacy practices.

The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of PII. .

C
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1.8. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.8.1.  Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's ‘Information Security
Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, authorized by
the Department’s Information Security Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, must;

1.8.1.1.

1.8.1.2,

1.8.1.3.

1.8.1.4.

1.8.1.5.

1.8.1.6.

1.8.1.7.

1.8.1.8.

1.8.1.9.

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01
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Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,

policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete

applicable trainings as required:;

Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other
use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to
personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no
time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do so:

Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, andfor
agreement relating to system entry/access:

Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by
the Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department;

Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department’s Information Security Office or designee;

Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee;

Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire ‘and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as. “internal
email systems” or “Department-funded email systems.”

Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines: and

Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.8.1.9.1. To onfylhuse a Department email address assigned to
them with a “@ affiliate. DHHS.NH.Gov".

DS .
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1.8.1.9.2.  Include in the signature lines information identifying
the End .User as a non-Department workforce
member; and

1.8.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
' embedded underneath the signature line: 7

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This message may contain

information that is privileged and confidential and is

intended only for the' use of the individual(s) to whom it is

addressed. If you receive this message in error, please

notify the sender immediately and delete this electronic

message and any attachments from your system. Thank
" you for your cooperation.”

1.8.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
. potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/f‘acility‘, must;

1.8.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data. :

1.8.1.10.2. Sign the Departments Business Use and
Confidentiality ~Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
Agreement and annually thereafter.

‘ 1.8.1.1'0.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view the
Department's  Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

1.8.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation of any

' of the above terms and conditions, said End User may face

removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal andfor civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.8.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users who possess Department credentials and/or badges or
who have system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges resign or
are dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to
notify the Department's Information Security Office or designee
immediately. ' :

1.8.2. Workspace Requirement

B :DS
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1.8.2.1.  [fapplicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users.

1.9. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services
1.9.1. General Requirements

1.9.1.1.  If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the

parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth

secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the

Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the

Department to assume the Serv:ces previously performed by the

Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as

. “Recipient”). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or

unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must

begin working with the Department and, if applicable, the new

Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.9.1.2.  The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications
equipment and internet-related  information  technology
infrastructure (“Internal IT Systems”) of Contractor to the Internal
IT Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance
to any third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection
with the Transition Services.

1.91.3. [If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or -software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Départment Data is
complete. )

1.9.1.4.  The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Serwces for purposes of this
Agreement.

~ 1.81.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the "end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's BEDS s
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1.9.1.6.

Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data-
and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasibie, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.2.  Completion of Transition Services

1.9.2.1.

1.9.2.2.

Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days
after the product, resuiting from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring
additional time to complete said product.

Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit,

1.9.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1.

In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not

| . reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate

2. Exhibits Incorporated

actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit 1,
- Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorp'orated by reference herein. :

3. Additional Terms

§8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01
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3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

- 3.1.1.

3.2. Federal

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements -under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

Civil nghts Laws Compliance: Cuiturally and Linguistically

Appropriate Programs and Services {CLAS)

3.21.

The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

3.3.3.

3.3.4.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, “The ~
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures;

3.3.3.2. Resource directories;
3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;
3.3.3.4. Posters; and

3.3.3.5. Reports

The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1.

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01
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municipal authoritiesandwithzanydirection of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any. governmentallicense or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the

State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and

must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations. '

3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.51.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.54.

4. Records

If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,

" guidelines, policies and procedures.

Eligjibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and

~ documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for.services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of histher right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations. -

4.1, The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1.

Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

:DS
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

41.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
-expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such-as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for -
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required.
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according fo state
or federal law or regulation. "

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts

and transcripts:

If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any ¥
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department \retains the
right, at its discretion, to'deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or

‘to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Ds
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TOTAL PROGRAM COST .
Activity Name BUDGET [ YTD __MONTHLY BUDGET .1 YID- MONTHLY
Rental Assistance 5 263,484 s
Suppertive Services 3 59,464 |}
Administration 3 6,287
25% Raguirad Maich - 5 76,401 |-
[FOTAL HUL FURDSIBALANCE 3 405,638 |.

. OTALTRT/1]24-6/30/254
CONTRACTOR SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YD MONTHLY BUDGET
Rentel Assislanca exLa I 263404
Supportive Sarvices N

JAdministration

[25% Required Match

83,880

|TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A0L
The Mental Health Centar for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Mansgement

R Rl B el

83,830

Total WO Match §

329,235

Contracter Initials

Date 8/29/2024




Docusegn Envelope 10: DIAFEBRAA-B7EC-4F I5-UABF-FArIasscasce

CLM-SH] ‘
|eot Funds - NHoO14L11602316

Exbibit €-2, Budiget, Amendment #1

V2]

PESTE

TOTAL FROGRAM COST . BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET | YTD MONTHLY BUGGET MONTHLY
[Rental Assistarce ) 61,028 v 5 T
Supportive Services 5 3,750 ¥
|Administration $ 1,89
25% Required Match 8 16,821
|FOTAL HUD FUNDE/SALANCE [ 63,550

. . ACTOR SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET. YTD [ MONTHLY BUDGET
Rental Assistance 3 651026 ‘ flil 81,008.0
Supportiee Services | 3 3,750
Adrministration 5 4950,
25% Required Match § 16,821 |
> [TOTAL WU FUNDSIBALANCE ] 8,560

§5:2004-0BH-12-CONTI-DLADL
The Mental Heaith Center for Seuthern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

Total WD Match

Contractor Initfals_}

8/29/2028
Date, 729/




-Datusign Envelope ID: D9AFESAA-BPEC-4F36-9ABF-FATIISSCASCC

CLM-SHI
|eot Funds - NHEO14L1T002316

Exbiblt €3, Budget, Amendment 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

Activity Name BUDGET, [ MONTHLY
Rental Assistence ] 758,403
[Supportive Senvices 5 41,250
Administration 5 21,454
[25% Requited Match s 185,025
[TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE [} 1,008,223

P
CONTRAGTOR SH,

Activity Mame

BUDGET

[ ¥7D MONTHLY

BUDGET

entel Assistance S w8 953 B
§Supportive Services - 3 a.750

JAdminTstration 5 1.951

[25% Required Match 3 18,821 |

[TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 5 01,475 {1

CONYRACTOR SHARE

BHS SHARE

Activity Name

BUDGET

Rertal Assistanice

pars

Supportive Services.

| Admiinistration

|#5% Required Match

201,847

[TOTAL HUr FURDE/SALANCE

225,622

Total W/G Match 5

¥TD |  MONTHLY

oy
§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A0L Contractor lnitials_L
The Mental Health Canter for Southern New'Hampsh'ire,
B 8/29,
D8A Centsr for Life Management Date / /292‘



Docusign Envelope [D: GIAFEBAA-BTED-4F M-BABF-FEYIBESCSSOT

CLM - KH Coordinited Entry Expansion
|coc Furds - NioessLITo02302.

Exhibit C-4, Biidget, Amendment 1

Activity Name

YTD

| BUDGET

[Supportive Senvices

Administration
20% Required Match

ITOTAL HUD FUNOS/BALANCE

¥TD MONTHLY

$25% Required Watch

: |T(JTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET | YTD MONTHLY BUDGET [ _¥to MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
[Supportive Services I % R T 3
Administeation

55-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01
The Mantal Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

Total WIO Match 3 e 51

™
Cantr'a:tur_lni(ials_D

Date

" 8/29/2024



Docusign Erfuslope I0: DIAFEIAA-BTEQ-4F I6-BABFFBT 550500

Exhibil £-5, Budget, Amendment #1

CLM-FH 1 —
Jeot Funds - nHOOB3L1T002316 T
s ﬁ\fzaf ¥
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTGH SH

Aclivity Name BUDGET MONTHLY
ental Assistance 5 263,484 |- i
Supportive Services. s 59,483
Adminisiration 3 6,287
25% Required Match H
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/GALANGE s

S TOTAL ST £1 F 2 5B 30/ 26T

. CONTRAGTOR SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET BUDGET |_¥TD | MONTHLY
[RantalAssistance 5 263,484
[Stpportive Serdees s 55,464
Administration 5 8.287
25% Required Match 3 78,401
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANGE 3 405,635

Total WID Match $ 379,235

£5-2024-DBH-12-CONTJ-01-A01
The Mental Healik Canter for Southarn New Hampshire,

: o . L. 872872024
DBA Center for life Management ' Date -

Contractor Inidals]

A



De:lﬂ-iqn Envelre I DIAFEMA-BIEC-4F 18- SABF-FSTIEI5CE5CC

Exhibit C-6, Budgat, Amendment #1

CLM-5H 1
Jcot Fands - 001117002315

SR SFY2026:- 8/1/75.6/30/26 - N 1
PROGRAMCOST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Namo BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD
Rental Assitance 750,483 s R s

5

* Supportiva Sarvices $
Admindstration : $ 464

]

$

25% Haquired Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE

206,020

T R -. SFYB027 i, 71/ 267 /3120
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRAGTOR SHARE

i

Activity Name MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET
Rentzl Assktance s . A RN R . - 639530
Supportive Senvices | S - - 18 ) 3750
[Admenisisation [y a8 .

5% Required Match i3 18.802 | e .

(TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE s _ 18,802 il

THOTAL #BJTI250 JALJ3E
CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

1Activity Name. BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTEW MONTHLY
Rental Assitance 3 527,436 ¥ £27.4360 ['3:

[Suppoartive Sarvices 5 45,000 |° 3 45,000 |

Administration 5 23415 3 23415

25% Required Match F] 201 847 3 =]

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 5 1,097,698 225622 3 855851 [3

. Totat WIO Match 1 295,851 -

-55-2024-0BH-12-CONTI-01-A01 ¢
The Mental Hzalth Center for Southern New Hampshire,

. B/29/2024
DBA Center for Life Management Date,

Contractor Initials



Docusign Envelope I0); DIAFESAABTE IndF J5-RABF-FATII55CHEEGE

Exhibic C-7, Budget. Amendment 41

CLM - NH Coordinated Entry Expansion b
]CoC Funds - {TBD)

B i FY2026 - 7/1] 256/ 30126 - ; G
TOTAL CONTRACTCR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET EUDGET YTD - MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY .
Supparthva Sendces $ T2.960 . e
Administration 5 3.847 |1
75% Required Match 5 35,144 |- -
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE ] 05,721 3
o i o YOTALSTi 17256/ 30/ 26 i
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE
[Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET yTD _iiMDNTHLY BUDGET
Supportive Services 3 2920 }8 -l 1e L e - i 1 S s 2oy T s
Administration [] 3647 (3 $ N - BN = 1% 364713 . - 4%
[25% Required Match s 18,144 |55 3 19,144 3 il L S T
TOTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE 3 95721 |3+ 3 19,104 |5 qs e VB5TTiS i+ 4§
Total W/Q Match 3 76,517
.
v
i
» I R
$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 , ' Contractor Inilials__C_;wH_"_m
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, *

8/29/20
DBA Center for Life Management Date /2972024 _



[racysign Envatopa 10: DIAFEGAL-BTED-AFI8-0ARF-FA73455CE5CC

CLM-FHI

[eoc Funds - nHe003LLTC02316

Exhibit C-8, Bucget, Amendment 41

w : S 436567302 e

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTHRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE .
Activity Name BUDGET Y10 | MoNTHLY BUDGET YTD | MONTHLY MONTHLY
Rental Assistance A s 253,484 |3 | K =
[Supportive Senvices 3 £0,485
Administration : N $ 6,287
[23% Regquired Match $
TOTAL HUD FUNOSIBAL ANCE $

3
TUTAL PROGRAM COST
Activity Name BUDGET MONTHLY NTD BUDGEY
Rental Assitance 3 263,484 263.484
|Suppontive Servicas 3 58,464
PAdmiinistration 3 6,287
[25% Required Match 5 7e401 |: .
[7OTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE $ 405,636 | 83,880 |5 s

$5-2024-DBI-12-CONTI-01-A0L

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management .

Fotal WD Watch

] 320,235

o3
Cantractor IniLiaIsLL

Dat

" 8/29/2024



Docus‘\ﬂn Enuelupe ID: DIAFESAA-BYED-4F 26-AAEFFBT 285508500

Exhibit C-9, Budget, Amendment 41

- CLM-SHI .
< ]coC Funds - NHOD141L1TR02316
. [T : - SPY2027 = 8f1/26-6/30/27. [
7 OTAL PROGRAM COST, CONTRAGTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Nama BUDGET YTD | MONTHLY. BUDGET WONTHLY
Rental Assistance . A 7654830
. |Eupportive Banvces 5 41260

206,520

24,484

mindstration
125% Required Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

208,820 |

AR T S SFY2028 < 7/1f27:7/31/27 i F i
- TOTAL PRGGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YD NMONTHLY BUDGET hai) MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Renta) Assistance 5 el EE S D 5 - T O s 63.9530 [ % 3: L
Supportive Services s 2750 |5 s 15 3 - |3 3750 |3 E
Adrmsnistration s 1951 |$ s [ - kS i 1s 1951 |8
[25% Requred Match 3 15821 |3 i s 18,802 | 3 3 e ¥
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 3 91475 |3 1s 3 13,862 I3 5 74654 s
. i TOTAL;wB/1/26.2/31/27,
CONTRACTOR SHARE ]
Activity Nama BUDGET BUDGET ¥TD | ~“MONTHLY. BUDGET |
[Rertal Assistance 3 627 436 - LA T § B27.436.0 |
[Supportive Services 5 45,060 § 45,000 |
Admiinistration $ 23415 3 Y
25% Required Mateh s 261 847 SRR
TOTAL HUD FUKDS/EALANCE $ 097698 3 895851

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A0L
The Mental Health Center for Sauthern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for Life Management

Total WO Batch 3

695,851

Contracter initials.

Dat

G

8/29/21024
S



Docuvign Emvakspe [; DMFEIAABTEC-AF I0840F FATISICAS0R

CLM - NH Cosrdinated Entry Expanaisn

Exhibit €-10, Budgat, Amendment 81

|eoc Funds - NHoossLATR02308
. SFY2027.- 7/1/36:6/30127, L 1
- TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTCR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Nama BURGET | YTD MONTHLY BUDGET' YTD. |  MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Supportive Sericss 5 ., s BT T Db -
Administration 5
26% Renuired Matdh s
[TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANGE - 3 s up
. ’ S
S — .
R S OTAL.- 7/1/26.6/30/27:. .. S :
TOTAL PROGRAM COST . CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE )
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
~ |Supportve Serdces 3 7203018 |8 - R £ e AL 13 N K FeXs ] DR | SR
mdmiristration s e |3 3 N i N ) L T
5% Required Match s X FEER T B - 19,144 NN L N DT
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALARCE ' 85751 |5 [ 1 B 19,144 s 7 |8 57§ < |3
Total WO Match - ] 78,577

55-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-A01 i
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
DBA Center for {ife Management

Contractot hilials,
87237204
Date.

(vt



Docusign Envelops 18); DOAFEBAA-BTE0-4F 38-8ABF-F BT 3855CE5CC

. Exhibit €-11, Budge!, Amerdment 81
CLNt-FHI
|eoc Funds - ixtoo03L1TO2316
{ : T SFY2008 - 7/ 27530136 : ) B
{—————— e e

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance s 263,484 | 1s : e 1 Lo |8 #34418 - |5 - Lo
Supportive Sarvices 5 58,464 | IS - 3 EX A I £
[Admiristration 5 6287 i -4 3 ey - |F <t
25% Required Match 5 76,401 3. 83,680 3 L NI | ] = 1§ -
TOTAL HUD FLINDSIBALANCE [ 405,636 |3 3. [ 23,060 |- 155 3 3202368 - |

T T TOTAL™=7/1{27:6/30/28 " Sm—— -
i

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE ' BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY SUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET Y1D MONTHLY
|Rentat Assmtance ] el G D . | . i 3 N P DR R -
[Suprorive Services [ spasds - |3 - |§ . i BN D so4s4(s - s -
[Acrenistration 3 g7 |s .~ s b B O - Is grly - |3 -
[26% Required Maich F] 75401 |'S 14 = |s 53,850 I - 3 R 13 - |5 .
[TOTAL HUD FURGSTEALARCE ] 405636 | & 3 - s pyeecls - - % = s S D -

Tolal WIO Match $ 329,235
L}
. o

$5-2624-DRH-12-CONTI-01-A01 ' Contractor lnitiaIS.E—-

The Mental Health Center for Scuthem Mew Hampshire, 872072004
DBA Center for Life Management Date,




Doeusign Envmlops 1D DRAFESAA-BTEQ.4 I5-9ABF FATSRI5CE5CC

Exhibit C-12, Budget, Amendment B1

CLM-SHI
{coC Fands - KHDO14L1T002316

£ - D i

BHS SHARE ]

Activity Name i BUDGET | YTD BUDGET | YT MONTHLY
Rental Assitance - s 3 E ] 758,48304% . s -
Supportive Senices $ $ 41,250 £ v k-
I&dimanistation R s . $ 3 L k]
25% Raguired Match | F) 155,025[ §. b 3 = |%
TOTAL HUD FURDS/BALANGE s 1,008:228 14 3 I

L i h " SFY2029 - 7/3/28:3/31/38 i G

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Actlvity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTOD
Rertal Assistance s 68953 18- " |5 T T 3 . -3 S Y 639530 {8 -
Supportive Services 5 3750 3. 3 s = s arofs .
ATl : s 1,051 3. 3 3 = 1s o P
Izs% Reqared Match s 168,621 3 s 3. 5. -0 -
TOTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE s 91,475 [ - 13 BENS § 74654 (5 -

[ TOTAL = 8[1/:2???]31{23,. it i
MCOST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHAR
MONTHLY BUDGET ¥1D MONTHLY BUDGET | YTo'

s smasse
BE) +45.000
[ 23.415

Activity Name
Rental Assistance ) 3
Suppartive Services k3 5:

§ « §§ -
3 []

$ $

- [Administration
[25% Required Match

or [en |wncn [an
o [ fen el

256 B
ITOTAI. HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 25602 |5 - N -
Totat WIO Match H 895,851 -7
. .
i
i
o3
v
55-2024-D8H-12-CONTI-01-A01 Contracter Inillals —
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampthire, 872042024
DBA Center for Life Management Date



DPogysign Emvaiaps 10; DAAFEBAA-BTED-F 260-6ABF-FATISHSCASCE

Exhibit C-13, Budget, Amendment 41

CLM -NH Coondinated Entry Expansion

|co€ Funds - nHoDIELATOGZ308
T = ~TSEY2028 - 7/1/27-6/30/28 '
- TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE, BHS SHARE
Aciivity Name BUDGET | YID MONTHLY ~BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET__| YID MONTHLY
Supportive Senvzes s 72,900 |3 3 5 L DY P PR
[Erministration i s 3,667 3 3 . 38
[25% Required Mateh 3 16,144 -5 23 ¥ |8
[TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANGCE $ 55,721 EE 3 * 3
X ) “TOTAL ‘:7[1]17:5}”:‘30}328] R . L
. TOTAL PROGRAMCOST CONTRAGTGR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Hame __ BUDGET | YID MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET__| YID MONTHLY
[Supportwe Sendzes s ] O T ~ PR P T Er O E O
Rdrminstraton s 3847 |3 3 N T 3 Erd TR F
75% Requed Waich s X7 IS gl 3 [ S
TOTAL HUD FUNGSIDALANCE ) w5725, & I3 = Wadls ool 3 4 TR O :
Tetal WO Mateh $ 6,577
.
o
' ] -
$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-D1-A01 - Contractor |nuian|sL

The Mental Health Center for Southern Mew Hampshire,

8/2972024
DBA Center for Life Management Date



Cacusign Envalops 10; DBAFESAA-BFEQ-4FI6-0ABF-FATIGE0085CC

Exhibit C-14, Budgat, Amerdment #1

CLM-FHI
[¢oC Funds - nHoaDaL1TE02316
. - N : L SFYA029 - Tf128-6f30/29 . ; i
. — —

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTCR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET . | ¥TD MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Retal Assistance s 263,464 } T N 3 S 263484 (8. & |35 e
|Supportive Sanvices ) 59,464 i “ fa454 |8~ ]38
[Admrinistration 3 6,257 | i X a2t 1% s {3
[25% Rraquired Match 5 78,40 |- 83880 | . % - I3 -
TOTAL HUD FUNDS!BALANCE $ 402,636 | 21,830 a2y . |8 '

S S I TOTAL"*7/1/28:6/30/29 ™" mmamimeme -

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MCNTHLY
Rectal Assstance 3 263,484 | 5 3 . N < % T i 263484 (8 - 15 -
Sipporive Sendces. ) 59454 | §° $ $ “ 3 o 43408 - 15 -
[ Adnursstration 3 6287 {§ 3 - s - 1] = 1] 6297 | § = S -.
[75% Required Maich 3 T6.401 |8 + - |s 53,660 ¥ . 45 5 - 13 -
|TOTALRUD FERDSIBALARCE s 405,636 | 3 s I Baes0 |5 = |3 . SR EEE D ~

Total WIO Watch $ 329,235

§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-D1-AD]
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hempshira,
D3A Center for Life Management

Contractor Mnitfals

Date 8/23/2014




Dacusign Envelaps [D: DOAFESAABTE 047 36-2ARF-FATIES56850C

CLM-SHI
lcot Funds - NHOO14LITODZ3 26

Exhibit C-15, Budget, Amendment #1 b

T SRInE e PR R T

' TOTAL PROGRAM COST | CONTRACTOR SHARE . BHS SHARE
 Activity Name BUDGET YTD | MONTHLY | BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET D
Rental Asslstance ] 750433 13 ) o 758483078 - '
Euppomve Sentes F3 41 250 [
Administration 3 21,464 3.
|§% Raguired Match ] 185,026 $
[TOTAL HUD FURDS/IBALANGE $ 1,006,223 £
R TOTAL -8/1/28-6/30/29 |
L PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE GHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET MONTHLY BUBGET YTD NONTHLY
Renlal Assntance s . B L seessobs s -
Supportve Senvcas $ - . 41250 | 3 E s i
|Admirisiration & B ET N =
2555 Requered Match A3 206,820 PREEE TR T
« [TOTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE s 204,520 s21897 1§ - 45 "

£5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01-AC1

The Mentai Health Center for Southern New Hampshice,

D&A Center for Life Managemen;

Totat WO Maich $

821,197

Contractor Initials m—
8/29/2024
e,



Docusign Envalaps 10 DSAFEANSBIED-4F 38- AR -FOTISECHES

Exhibit C-15, Budget, Amendment &1

CL4 - NH Coordinatad Entry Expansion
[coc Funds - NHOoSELITOOZ308

H o SFY2022 - 7/1/28.6/30/29 Rt T
L PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Nama . BUDGET ¥TD | ‘MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY | "BUDGET. Y1D MONTHLY
Suppartiva Services 4 725308 " .o |8
Administration 5 o 3847 by s
[25% Raquired Match $ 15.144° e e i
s]TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 3 19.144 5 - §$ -

TOTAL: »7/1/28:6/30/29 ..~ :

TOTAL FROGRAM CGST . CONTRACTOR SHARE EHS SHARE
Activity Name BUDGET Y10 MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
|Stppontve Senvices. 3 72520 |51 R 0 NN g e 72ambs . s -
Adminisiration 3 3647 i e | .= s s 3647 [ 8 - 18 -
25% Required Match 5 15,144, $ A LU N 7 o o % - 15 -
" [ToTACHUD FONDSBALANEE ] 95,721 Ts TR EEl I P CN ~
Total W/O Mateh H 8,577
N .
! 15
o I3
55-2024-DBH-12-CONTL-01-A0L i

Contractor [nitlals_)
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,

8/29/2024
GBA Center for Life Manzgement e,

Dat

e




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER
FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on April 17, 1967. I further certify that all fees and decuments required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61791
Certificate Number: 0006195460

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th day of April A.D. 2023,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State-—-- .
— -
—— —
- ~-
CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CLM CENTER FQR LIFE
MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 30, 2003. I further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 442328
Certificate Number; 0006195454

IN TESTIMONY WHERECF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE CF AUTHORITY

Vernon Thoma
l, S . hereby certify that;
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Cormporation/t.LC; cannot be coniract signatony)

1. 1'am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of T._he Mental Health Center for Southern New H '.
{Corporation/LLLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _August 19 , 2024 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date) :

VOTED: That VIC TOpO
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

{may list more than one pérson)

Tha Montal Healtn Genter tor Southern Now Hampshira DEA Center'for Lita

is duly authorized on behalf of to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

{Name of Corperation/ LLC) |

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any -and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full autherity to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: w 2024
%VM%%% ’

Signature of Elected Officer

Name: Vernon Thomas

Title: Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



Client#: 1485395 MENTAHEAZ29
DATE {MWVDR/YYYY)

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 1211012023

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE GERTIFIGATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: i the certificaie holder s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of be endorsed,
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MISSION STATEMENT -

To promote the health and well-being of individuals, families and organizations. We accomplish this
through professional, caring and comprehensive behavioral health care services and by partnering with

other organizations that share our philosophy.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The. Mental Health Center for
Southern New "Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refetred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM
Center for Life Management and Affiliate as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are firther described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the: aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statemeints are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements asa -
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated
financial statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

" procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management-and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 21-27 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards gencrally acceptéd in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governmient Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21,
2023, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliate’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/fa CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliate’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

-2



integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government A uditing Standards in considering The
Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and
Affiliate’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 of the financial stateménts, in 2022, the organization adopted Financial
Accounting Standard Board's Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Wicthart, Wimette & Ousoe., PAC

Essex Junction, Vermont
Registration number VT092.0000684
December 21, 2023



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Accounts-receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Secuf'ity deposit

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets
Marketable securities
Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion
Interest rate swap agreement

‘Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of operating lease payable
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities
Accrued vacation
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities
PMPM reserve
Operating lease payable, less current portion
Long term debt, less current portion
Total long term Habilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

Total Jiabilities and net assets .

See notes to financial statements

Y

2023 2022
$ 701,086 § 7410824
590,538 344,429
7,401,624 7,755,253
998,127 712,586
1251436 1,152,465
191,843 380,861
30,949 18,687
27,373 -
9,901,352 10,019,852
3,486,795 3,650,371
1,211,838 1,126,706
59,309 -
73,150 24,211
$ 14,732,444 $ 14,821,140
$ 113571 §& 108,571
18,734 -
67,447 31,894
397,919 267,960
579,905 492,262
117,533 138,522
- 840,015
1,295,109 1,879,224
368,140 1,208,356
46,282 -
1,790,935 1,504,506
2,205,357 3,112,862 .
3,500,466 4,992,086
10,841,440 9,484,625
390,538 344 429
11,231,978 9,829,054
$ 14.732.444 $ 14,821,140



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
I/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

' Consolidated Statements of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2023

Public support.and revenues:
.Public-support:

"Federal
State of New Hampshire - BBH
State and local funding
Other public support
Total public support
Revenues:
Program service fees, net
Other service income
Rental income
Other. _
Total revenues
Total public support and revenues

Net assets released from resirictions:
Satisfaction of program restrictions
Total

Operating expenses:
BBH funded programs:

Children
Collaborative Care
Elders
Supportive Employment
Adults Multi Service
Housing / Independent Living
Assertive Community Treatment
Acute Care
Non-BBH funded program services
Total program expenses
Administrative expenses
Total expenses
Change in net assets from operations
Non-operating revenue and expenses:
Interest income
Investment income / (loss)
Fair value gain on interest rate swap
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year

Without Donor ~ With Donor
Restrictions  Restrictjons Total
$ 2181357 § - $ 2,181,357
2,653,273 - 2,653,273
23,833 - 23,833
108,504 135,287 243,791
4,966,967 135287 5,102,254
22,559,656 - 22,559,656
557,839 - 557,839
5,826 - 5,826
12,648 - 12,648
23,135,969 - 23,135,969
28,102,936 135287 28,238,223
89,178 (89,178) .
28,192,114 46,109 28238223
6,757,640 - 6,757,640
1,439,927 - 1,439,927
1,172,774 - 1,172,774
561,766 - 561,766
7,224,022 . 7,224,022
3,530,181 - 3,530,181
842,336 - 842,336
2,873,136 - 2,873,136
833,365 - 833,365
25,235,147 - 23,235,147
1,766,971 - 1,766,971
27,002,118 o 27,002,118
1,189,996 46,100 1,236,105
32,748 ] 32,748
85,132 - 85,132
48,939 - 48,939
1,356,815 46,109 1,402,924
9,484,625 344429 9,829,054
$ 10,841,440 $ 390,538 $11.231,978

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLCM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2022

‘Without Donor

With Donor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Public support and revenues;
Public support: A
Federal ‘ $ 1,662,135 % - $ 1,662,135
State of New Hampshire - BBH ' 1,809,457 - 1,809,457
State and focal funding 5,200 - 5,200
" Other public support 73,299 269,902 343,201
Total public support 3,550,091 269,902 3,819,993
Revenues:
Program service fees, net _ 21,192,628 - 21,192,628
Other service income ) 467,731 - 467,731
Rental income ' 5474 - 5,474
Other 19,813 - 19,815
Total revenues 21,685,648 - 21,685,648
Total public support and revenues 25,235,739 269,902 25,505,641
Net assets released from restrictions:
Satisfaction of program restrictions 50,670 (50;670) -
Total - ‘ - 25,286,409 219,232 25,505,641
Operating expenses:
BBH funded programs:
Children 6,185,534 - 6,185,534
' Elders 566,122 - 366,122
Vocational ) . 295,094 - 295,094
. Multi-Service 6,547,224 - 6,547,224
Acute Care 2,219,141 - 2,219,14]
Independent Living 3,430,087 = 3,430,087
Assertive Community Treatment 975,245 = 975,245
Non-Specialized Outpatient 489,366 - 489,366
Non-BBH funded program services 413,275 - 413,275
Total program expenses 21,121,088 - 21,121,088
Administrative expenses 1,592,532 - 1,592,532
Total expenses ) 22,713,620 - 22,713,620
Change in net assets from operations 2,572,789 219,232 2,792,024
Non-operating expenses: ]
PPP Loan forgiveness 2,212,100 - 2,212,100
Loss on disposal of assets (78,421) - (78,421)
Interest income 1,067 - 1,067
Investment income / (loss) (173,294) - (173,294)
Fair value gain (loss) on interest rate swap 124,476 - 124,476
Change in net assets 4,658,717 219,232 4,877,949
Net assets, beginning of year 4,825,908 125,197 4,951,105
Net assets, end of year 3 9484625 § 344429 § 9,829,054

’

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Personnel costs:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Accounting/audit fees

Advertising

Conferences, conventions and meetings

Depreciation

Equipment meintenance

Equipment rental

Insurance

Interest expense

Legal fees

Membership dues

Occupancy expenses

Office expenses

Other expenses

Other professional fees

Program supplies

Travel

Total expenses

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses

Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Program Pragram
Scrvices  Administrative Total Services  Administrative Total
$ 16,922,166 % 992,920 § 17,915,086 $ 14009499 § 823809 % 14,833,308
2,816,948 187,245 3,004,193 2,702,974 105,415 2,808,389
1,217,703 68,690 1,286,393 985,374 54,883 1,040,257
8,952 66,722 75,674 79,915 8,460 98,375
38,253 17,119 55,372 64,880 4,636 69,516
50,782 4,754 55,536 40,514 15,664 56,178
313,342 19,005 332,347 244 858 37,552 282,410
- - - 24,087 765 24,852
32,935 632 ) 33,567 41,624 995 42,619
7,041 1i7,131 124,172 39,891 35,018 94,969
117,450 11,658 129,108 69,511 27,876 97,387
3,083 27.463 30,546 1,425 - 37,022 38,447
8,668 66,430 75,098 18,951 70,853 89,804
2,117,045 36,486 2:153,531 1,430,197 56,937 1,487,134
521,486 46,888 568,374 288,208 71,203 359411
75,731 7,422 83,153 43,269 41,320 84,589
550,602 77,031 627,633 371,828 093,333 465,161
134,869 17,208 152,077 442,388 95,364 537,752
298,091 2,167 300,258 . 201,695 1,427 203,122
$ 25,235,147 § 1,766,971 3 27,602,118 $21,121,088 § 1,592,532 $22,713,620

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in net assets 3 1,402,924 3 4,877,949
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net

assets 1o net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 332,347 282,410
Amortization of loan origination fees included
in interest expense 18,930 18,930
Loss on disposal of assets : - 78,421
Investment (income) loss (85,132) 173,294
~ PPP Loan forgiveness - (2,212,100)
Fair value (gain) loss on interest rate swap (48,939) (124,476)
. Amortization of right of use asset in lease expense 22,811 -
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net (285,541) (234,849)
Other receivables (98,971) (925,659)
Prepaid expenses 189,018 (259,538)
Security deposits (12,262) (7,600)
Increase (decrease) in: )
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 232,166 . (34,487)
Deferred revenue (840,015) 565,428
PMPM reserve (840,216) 724,813
Net cash provided by.operating activities (12,880) 2,922.536
Cash flows from investing activities:
Transfers to investments - (1,300,000)
Commitment fee paid for right of ise asset ’ (30,000 -
Purchases of property and equipment (168,771) (328,258)
Net cash used by investing activities (198,771)  (1,628,258)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments onlease liability (14,477) -
Net principal payments on long term debt (127,501) (122,500
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (353,629) 1,171,778
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 7,755,253 6,583,475
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 7401624 § 7,755,253

See notes to financial statements
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Note 1.

Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

' June 30, 2023 and 2022

Nature of organization

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the “Organization”) is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New
Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health
PIOgrams.

During 2006, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the “Foundation’) was
established to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the
Organization. It is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management through common board members and management.
In addition, the Organization is the sole member.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and the Center for Life Management Foundation are collectively referred to the
“Organization”.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and the Center for Life
Management Foundation. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization’s consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements and the notes are representations of the Organization’s management.
The Organization is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial
statements,

‘Basis of accounting .

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. ‘Under
this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred,
without regard to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in
accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Accounting for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made,

Basis of presentation

The Organization’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require the Organization
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’s
management and the board of directors.




THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in

perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities.

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had net assets without donor restrictions of

" $10,841,440 and $9,484,625, respectively and had net assets with donor restrictions of
$390,538 and $344,429, respectively. See Note 8 for discussion regarding net assets with
donor restrictions.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from
the estimates that were used. '

Cash and cash equivalents _
The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable _

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The
Organization had an ailowance for doubtful accounts of $217,379 and $274,041 as of June
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Refer to Note 3 for additional discussion of accounts
receivable,

Property
Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair

value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 — 40 years
Automobiles 3 — 15 years
Equipment 57 years

All equipment valued at $5,000 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are capitalized. Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized. Depreciation expense was $332,347 and
$282,410 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
DB/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Basis of accounting and summary of sienificant accounting pelicies (continued)

Investments -

The Organization follows the Not-For-Profit Entities subtopic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification with respect to investments. Under this subtopic, investments in
marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.

Finance costs

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of position net of accurnulated amortization. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the unamortized financing costs .
are reported as a reduction in long term debt - see Note 7. The costs are amortized over the
term of the respective financing arrangement.

Vacation pay and fringe benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs. '

Deferred revenue

Amounts included in deferred revenue represent funds received in advance of expenditures
incurred under the respective arrangement. The advances are recognized as revenue in the
period the expenditure is incurred.

Fair value measurements and financial instruments

The Organization adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codification established
a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the vse of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques
that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
These inputs are prioritized as follows: '

e Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Organization’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.
The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair vaiue due to their bearing interest at
rates that approximate current market rates for notes with similar maturities and credit
quality.
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Note 2.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
_ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022 '

Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Organization’s interest rate swap agréements are classitied as level 2 in the hierarchy, as
all significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly observable, such as the
underlying interest rate assumptions.

Third-party contractual arrangements

A significant portion of revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is

provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Advertising expenses

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred,

Expense allocation )
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Contributions :

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed
restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the -
contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an

increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.
Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets
must be used are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions
are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.

Interest rate swap
The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its State

Authority Bond to a fixed rate, as described in Note 12. The change in the fair value of the
swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted
with the interest expense on the bonds. Cash flows from intcrest rate swap contracts are
classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

Income taxes

The Organization is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization has also been classified as an
entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of 509(a) and qualifies for
deductible contributions.

12 -



Note 2.

THEMENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Basis of accounting and summary of siggiﬁcant accounting policies (continued)

The Foundation is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is an organization that i is organized and operated
exclusively for the benefit of the Orgamzatxon

These consolidated financial statements follow FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertain
Income Tuaxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Accounting for Uncertain Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these consolidated

~financial statements as the Organization believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that

could have an effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Federal Form 990 (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years 2020
through 2022 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after filing.

Leases

The Organization determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, Leases are
included in right-of-use (ROU)-assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial
position. ROU assets and lease liabilities reflect the present value of the future minimum
lease payments over the lease term, and ROU assets also include prepaid or acerued rent, if
applicable. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Organization does not report ROU assets and leases liabilities for its short-term leases
(leases with a term of 12 months or less). Instead, the lease payments of those leases are
reported as lease-expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On July 1, 2022, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-
02, Leases, which requires lessees to recognize leases on the statement of financial position
and disclose key’information about leasing arrangements. The Organization elected not to
restate the prior period. It also elected not to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing
contracts to determine whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of any
existing leases, or (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. As a result of implementing ASU
No. 2016-02; the Organization recognized right-of-use assets of $109,493 and lease liabilities
totaling $79,493 in its statement of financial position as of July 1, 2022, The adoption did not
result in a significant effect on amounts reported in the statement of activities for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

Subsequent events _
The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through December 21, 2023, the date

the consolidated financial statements were avatlable to be issued.
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Note 3.

Note 4.

Note 5.

- Concentrations of credit risk

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFF ILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,:

2023 2022
Receivable Receivable
Accounts receivable Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net
Clients $ 234,629 § (147,078) $ 87,551  § 280,322 $ (195,853) § 84,469
Insurance companies 284,713 (16,162) 268,551 261,142 (15,268) 245,874
Medicaid 132,229 (28,546) 103,683 272,096 (35,5856) 236,510
Medicare 563,935 (25,593) 538,342 173,067 (27.334) 145,733
$1,215.500 $_(217.379) $..998.127  $_986,627 $.(274,041) $__ 712,586
2023 2022
Other receivables - '
NH Division of Mental Health $ 1,124,288 $ 1,123214
Contractual services / other receivables 127,148 29251
S_1.251.436 $_ 1,152,465
Prepaids
Prepaids consists of the following at June 30:
2023 2022
Prepaid insurance $ 53,347 S 283,855
Prepaid rents 138.496 97.006

$__191.843  §__ 380861

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist of the following:

2023 2022
Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in .
southern New Hampshire $ 998,127 5 712,586
Other receivables due from entities located ,
in New Hampshire $__1251436 = $__1,152465

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had approximately
$6,980,000 and 7,360,000 in uninsured cash balances.
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Note 6.

Note 7.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Properiy and equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30;

2023
Land S 565,000
Buildings and improvements 4,049,000
Automobiles 45,685
Equipment 1,980,235
6,639,920
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,153,125}

Property and equipment, net

Long term debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30;:

2023

Series 2015 New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond -

Payable through 2036, original principal of

$3,042,730, remarketed and sold to People’s

United Bank (now M&T) at a variable rate. Secured

by land, building, equipment, and certain revenues,

revenues. The note matures August 2025. The

Organization has entered into an interest rate

swap agreement to effectively fix the interest

rate on the note. See Note 11. s 2,167,730
Less: unamortized finance costs (263,224)
Long term debt, less unamortized finance costs 1,904,506
Less: current portion of long term debt (113.571)

Long term debt, less current portion

2022

$ 565,000
4,006,985
45,685
1,853.475
6,471,145

(2.820,774)

- 2022

$ 2,295230

(282.153)
2,013,077

(108.,571)

In 2017, the Organization retroactively adopted the requirements of FASB ASC 835-30 to
present debt issuance costs as a reduction of the carrying amount of debt rather than as an

asset.

Amortization of $18,930 and $18,962 is reported as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

~—
—
Note 7. Long term debt (continued) T
. —_— H\‘
. T —— —
Future maturities to long term debt are-as-follows: -
T Long Term Debt ~ Unamortized
e Principal Finance Costs Net
Year ending June 30, - )
2024 h 132,500 '$_ (18,929 § 113,571
2025 137,500 (18,929) 118,571
2026 142,500 (18,929 123,571
2027 147,500 (18,929 128,571
2028 152,500 (18,929) 133,571
Thereafter 1,455,230  __ (168,579) 1,286,651
Total $__2167.730 $_(263224) $__1904,506

Note 8. Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted as to the following areas of support as
follows at June 30,:

2023 2022

Bishop’s charitable assistance fund $ 28,650 ¥ 5,000
Aging population funding : 8,848 48,000
Homeless outreach " 283,090 223,960
Access to care 34,796 36,031
Children’s access ' - « 9,604
First Steps funds 8,701 9,352
Collaborative fund 250 4,750
Youth and Family Fund 22,800

Miscellaneous 3,403

Note 9. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following at June 30,:
2023 2022

HCBS ARPA Funds s - $____840,015

During the year ending June 30, 2022, the Organization received $840,015 in Home and
Community Based Services funds which are funded through Section 9817 of the American
Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA”). The funds are designed to enhance, expand, and strengthen
certain Medicaid home and community based services (HCBS) and behavioral health
services. As of June 30, 2022, none of the funds had been spent, however, they were spent in
their entirety during the year ending June 30, 2023.
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Note 10.,

Note 11.

Note 12.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Paycheck protection program

On April 17, 2020, the Organization received $2,212,100 in loan proceeds under the
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act™), provides loans to qualifying businesses
for amounts up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying
business.

The loan was forgiven in full during August 2021, thus the Organization has no obligation to
repay the funds received. Accordingly, the $2,212,100 in loan forgiveness is reported PPP
loan forgiveness in the non-operating revenue and expenses in the consolidated statement of
activities for the year ending June 30, 2022.

Line of credit

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had a demand line of credit with M&T Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $1,000,000 and $850,000, respectively. Interest accrued on the
outstanding principal balance is payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal Prime for an
effective rate of 8.25% at June 30, 2023. The outstanding balance on the line at June 30,
2023 and 2022 was $0. respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets and
real estate,

Interest rate swap

During 2016, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement with M&T Bank
that effectively fixes the interest rate on the outstanding principal of the Bank’s term note at
3.045%. '

‘Under the arrangetnent, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the

Organization receiving floating payments of one month London InterBank Offered rate
("LIBOR") plus .69% and paying a fixed rate of 3.045%.

The agreement matures August 2025 and has a notional amount of 82,167,730 and
$2,295,230 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the interest rate swap agreement
is recorded at its fair value as an asset or liability, with the changes in fair value being
reported as a component of the change in net assets without donor restrictions. For the years
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization reported an interest rate swap asset /
(liability) of $73,150 and $24,211 on the statement of financial position and a fair value gain /
(loss) on the interest rate swap of $43,939 and $124,476 and on the statement of activities,
respectively. The fair value gain / (loss) is reported as a non-operating expense of the
Organization and is a non-cash transaction.

-17 -



Note 13.

Note 14.

Note 15.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Emplovee benefit plan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions and expenses totaled $211,830 and $196,967 for
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Concentrations

For the years ended June 30, 2023 -and 2022, the Organization received approximately 74%
and 75%, respectively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
State of New Hampshire designated Community Mental Health Center affords the
Organization Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides a base allocation. of
state general funds and Federal funding; which are drawn as related expenses are incurred.

Lease commitments

The Organization evaluated current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease.
The right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the Organization’s right to use underlying assets for
the lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization’s obligation to make lease
payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all of which arise
from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of future lease payments
over the lease-terms. The Organization has made an accounting policy election to use it’s
incremental borrowing rate to discount future lease payments, which was 8.25% as of the
lease commencement date.

The following summarizes the Organization’s leasing:

»  The Organization leases equipment under a leasing arrangement which expires August
2026. The agreement requires an initial $30,000 non-refundable deposit and monthly
payments of $1,950 through the term. The lease resulted in a right of use asset and lease
liability being recorded in the year ending June 30, 2023.

The following summarizes amounts in the financial statements associated with the-lease
during and as of June 30, 2023:

Statement of Financial Position:

Current portion of operating lease right of use asset $ 27,373
Operating lease right of use asset, less current portion 59,309
Total operating lease right of use asset §  BG6,682
Current portion of operating lease payable 5 18,734
Operating lcase payable, less current portion 46,282

Total operating lease payable s 65016
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Note 15.

Note 16.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Lease commitments (continued)

Starement of Functional Expenses:

The components of operating lease expenses that are included in rent costs in the statement of
functional expenses were the following for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Amortization of right to use asset 3 22,811
Interest paid on operating lease payable
Total operating lease expense

5,023

$ 27834

The maturities of operating lease liabilities are the following:

Year ending June 30,

2024 N 23,400

2025 23,400

2026 23,400

2027 3.900

Total lease payments 74,100
Less: Present value discount (9.084)
Total $_._ 65016

» The Organization leases facilities and equipment under various operating leases which
are for periods of twelve months or less. In accordance with lease accounting, short-term
leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less) are reported as lease expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Rent expense recorded under these arrangements
was approximately $280,000 and $226,900 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Investments and fair value measurements

The Organization reports its investments at fair value using Level 1 inputs. The following
details the fair value at June 30, 2023;

Unrealized Market % of

Cost Gain/(Loss) Value Total

Cash and equivalents $ 15975 % - % 15975 1%
Exchange Traded Funds 1,255,033 (75.143) 1,195,863 99%
Total investments $ 1271008 S (146,679) $1,211,838 100%

The Organization reports its investments at fair value using Level 1 mputs The followmg
details the fair value at June 30, 2022:

Unrealized Market - %of

Cost Gain/(Loss) Value Total

Cash and equivalents $ 17,032 § - 5 17,032 2%
Exchange Traded Funds 1,256,356 (146.679) 1.109.677 98%

Total investments - §1,273388 $ (146,67 $ 1,126,709 100%
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Note 16,

Note 17.

o

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Investments and fair value measurements (continued)

The following schedule summarizes the investment income and its classification in the.
statement of activities for the years ended June 30,:

2023 2022
Realized gains/(losses) $ (10,930) $ (45,537)
Unrealized gains/(losses) 71,539 (146,679)
Interest and dividends 30,169 25,039
Fees and expenses {5,646} _ (6,117
Investment income/(expense), net 5 85,132 $(173,294)

Availability and liquidity

The following represents the Organization’s financial assets at June 30,:

2023 2022

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $7.401,624 $7,755,253

Accounts receivable 998,127 712,586

Other receivable ' 1,251,436, 1,152,465

Security deposit 30,949 18.687

Total financial assets 9,682,130 9,638,9991

Less amounts not available within one year:

Restricted cash (390,538) (344,429)

Security deposit (30.949) (18.687)
Financial assets available to meet general

Expenditures over the next twelve months ~ $92,260,649 - $9.275.875

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available
funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing mission-related
activities, as well as the conduct of service undertaken to support those activities, to be
general expenditures.

The Organization’s primary source of liquidity is its cash and cash equivalents.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures within one year, the

Organization operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donot-restricted resources.

-2 -



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
IVB/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
: Consolidating Statement of Position

June 30, 2023
CenterforLife  CLM
Managernent  Foundation Total Eliminations ' Congolidated
ASSETS
" Current assets:
Cash and cush equivalents S 6913766 $ 97320 5 7011086 S - % 7,011,088
Restricted cash - 390,538 390,538 - 390,538
Accounts receivable, net 998,127 - 998,127 998,127
Qther receivables 1,251,436 - 1,251,436 - 1,251,436
Prepaid expenses 190,843 1,006 191,843 - 191,843
Security deposit * 30,49 - 30,949 - 30,949
Current portion of uperating lease right of use assct 27373 - 27373 - 27,373
Due from afTiliate 15,167 - 15,167 (15,167 . -
Tetal current assets 9.427,661 483,858 9,916,519 (15,167} 9,901,352
Property and equipment, net 3,486,795 - 3.486,795 - 3,486,795
Other assets: + -
Marketable securities 1.211,838 . 1,211,838 - - 1,211,833
Operating Jease right of use asset, less curcent portion 59,309 - 39,309 - 59,300
‘Interest rate swap agreement 73.150 - 73,156 - 73,150
Total assets § 14258753 § 4RRESE $ 14747611 £ (15167) § 14,732494
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Curent liubilities: -
Current pertion of long-tenn debt H 13571 8§ - $ 13571 § - S 113,571
Current partion of operzting lease payable 18.734 - 18,734 - 18,734
Accounts payable 64,678 2,769 67447 - 67,447
Accrued payrofl and payroll liabilities 397919 - 347,919 - 397,919 |
Accrued vacation 579,505 - 579,905 - 579,905
Accrued cxpenses 117,533 - 117,533 - 117,533
Due to affiliate - 15,167 15167 (15.167) -
Total current Liabilities 1,292,340 17,936 1,310,276 (15,167) 1,295,109
Long term linbilities: R
Inlerest rate swaps agresment - - - - -
PMPM reserve , 368,140 - 368,140 - 368,140°
Operating lease payable, less cumrent portion 26,282 - 46,282 - 46,282
Long-term-debt less current portion 1,790,935 - 1,780,935 - 1,790,935
Total long term liabilities 2,205,357 - 2,205,357 . 2,205,357
Total liabilities 3,497,697 17,936 3.515,633 {15,167y 3,500,466
Ner assets:
‘Without donor restricticns 19,761,056 80,384 10,341,440 - 10,841 440
With donor restrictions - 390,538 390;538 _ 390,538
Total ner assets 10,761,056 470,922 11231978 - 11,231,978
Total tisbilities and net assets N $ 14258753 S 438858 $14,747611 S (15167) S [4.732.444

See Independent Auditar’s Report -21-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Consolidating Statement of Position
June 30, 2022

Center for Lile CLM
Management  Foundation Total Eliminations ~ Consolidated

Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7248382 5 162442 S 7410424 § - 5 7410,824
Restricted cagh - 343428 | 344429 - 344,429
Accounts receivable, net 712,584 - 712,586 T 712,586
Other receivables 1,152,465 - 1,152,465 - 1152465
Prepaid expenses g 330,861 - 380,861 - 350,861
Secusity deposit 18,687 - 18,687 - 18,687
Due from affiliate 211 - 211 [N -
Total current asséts 9,513,192 506,871 10,020,063 (211}  10.019,852
Property and equipment, net . 3,650,371 - 1.650.371 - 3,650,371
Other assets . .
Murkeiable securities 1,126,706 - 1,126,706 - 1,126,706
Interest rate swap agreement ‘ 24,211 - 24,211 - 24211
Tota) assets . § 1431448 5 506871 S 14.821.351 $ 2111 5 E4.821.140
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Fiabilities: |
Current portion of long-term debt S 108,571 § - § 1085T $ =18 108571
Acrounts payable 31894 - 31,394 - 3,894
Accrued payroll and payrol! liabilities . 267,960 - 267,960 - 267,560
Accrued varation ’ 492,262 - 492262 Co- 491,262
Accrued eipenses 138,522 - 138,522 - 133,522
Deferred revenus 840,015 - 840,15 - 840,015
Duge to affiliate . - 211 211 21N -
Total current liabilities 1,879-.224 m 1,879,435 {211} 1,879,224
Long term liabilities
Interest rate swap agreement - - . - - -
PMPM reserve . 1,208,356 - 1,208,356 - 1,208,356
Long-term-debe less current portion 1.504,506 - 1,904,506 - 1,504,506
Total long term Liabilities 3.112.862 - 3,112,862 - 3,112,862
Total linbilities 4,992,086 ., m 4,992,267 (211 4,992,086
Net assets:
Witheut donor restrictions 9,322,394 162,231 9,484,625 - 9,484,625
With donor restriciions . - 344,429 _344,429 - 344,429
Total net assets 9322394 506,660 9,829,054 - 9,829,054
Total Habillies and net assets S 14314480 S _ 506871 S 14821351 § 2 I'I) S 14,831,140

See Tndependent Auditor’s Report -224



Public support and revenues:
Publie support:
Federal
State of New Hampshire - BBH
State and focal finding
Other public support
Tetal public suppon
Revenues:
Program service fees. nel
Cther service iicome
Rental income
Other
Tetal revenues
Total public supporl and revenes
Net assets released from restrictions:
Salisfaction of program restrictions
Tolal
Operating expenses:
BBH [unded programs:”
Clildren
‘Collaborative Care
Efders
Suppottive Employvinent
Adnlts Maolli Service
Housing / Independant Living
Assertive Community Treatment
Acuts Care
Non-BBH funded program services
Contributions
Total pragram expenses
Administralive expenses
Total expenses
Change in net assets from operations
Men-operating revenue and expenses;.
Interest income
Investment income / {foss}
Fair value gain on interest rate swap
Change in nel assels
Net assets, hepinning of year
Net assets, end of year,

See [ndependent Auditor’s Report

THE MENTAL HEALTI] CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSIIIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Conselidating Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CLM Foundation

Cenler for Life

Without Donor

With Donor

Manngemen!  Restrigfions  Restrictions Total Tetal Consolidated
$ 2181357 5 - 3 -8 -8 2181357 § - § 2181357
2,653,273 - . - 2,453,273 - 2653273
23813 - - - 23813 - 23,833
75.802 76,095 135,257 3(£,382 287184 (3303 _ 243791
4,934,265 16,095 135,287 21382 5145647 43,393 5,102,254
22,550,656 - - - 22559656 - 22559656
557,839 - - . 557539 - 557,339
5,826 B - 5826 - 5.826
7.083 5.565 - 5,565 12,648 . 12,648
23,130,404 5,565 B 5565 23,135,969 - 23,135,969
28,064,669 BL660 135,287 216947 28,281,616 43392)  28,238.223
- 89,178 (89,178 - - -
28,064,669 170,838 46,109 216947 28,281,616 @#3,393)  28,238223
:

6,757,640 - - - 6,757,640 . 6,757,640
1439927 . - . 1,439,927 - 1,439,927
LIT2IH - - - L172,7H - L1721
561,766 - - - 561,766 - 561,766
7224022 . . . 7.224,022 - 7,224,022
3,530,181 - - - 3530,181 - 3,530,181
342336 - - - 242,336 - 842,336
2,873,136 - - . 2,873,136 - 2,873,136
624,073 219,732 - 219,732 843,805 {10,440) 833,365
- 32,953 . 32953 32,953 (32.95%) -
25,025,855 252,685 - 252685 25,278,540 (43393)  25,235.147
1,766971 . - - .- 1,766,971 - 1766971
26,792,526 252,685 - 352,688 27,045,511 (43393) 27,002,118
1,271,843 (31,847) 46,109 (35,738) 1,236,105 - 1,236,105
32748 - - - 32,748 - 32,748
85,132 - - - 85,132 - 85,132
48939 - - - 45939 - 48939
1,438,662 (81,347 46,169 (35738} 1,402,934 - 1,402924
9,322,394 162231 344,429 505660 _ 9829054 - 9,529,051
S 10,761,055 S 20381 S 300538 S5 470977 5 11231978 S - 511231978
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Public support and revenues:
Public support:
Federal
State of New Hampshire - BBH
State and Jocal funding
Other public support
Total public suppor
Revenues:
Program sevvice fees, net
Other service income
Rental income
Other
Total revenues
Tatal publiz support and revenues
Net assets released from restrictions;
Satigfaction of program restrictions
“Total
BEBH Junded programs:
Children
Elders
Vecational
Multi-Service”
Acute Care
Independent Living
Assertive Community Treathient
Non-Specialized Cuspatient
Non-BBH finded program services
Contribulions
Total program expenses
Adminlsicalive expenses
Tolal expenses

Change in net assefs fron: operations

Non-onerating revenue znd expenses:

PPP Loan forgiveness
Loss on disposal of assets
Interest income
Investment income / {toss)
Fair value gein on inferest rate swap
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year
Met assets, end afyear

See Independent Auditor's Report

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW IJAMPSHIRE
D/BiA CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE

Consolidating Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

CLM Foundation
Center for Life.  Without Donor ~ With Donor

Management Restdctions  Resteictinns Totsl Total Lliminations Consolidated
S 1,662,135 § - -8 -85 1662135 § -5 1,662,135
1,809,457 . - - 1,809,457 - 1,809,457
5200 - - - 5,200 - 5,200
18,542 53,757 269,902 324,659 343,201 . 143201
3,495,314 54,757 268,902 324659 3,819,993 - 3,819,503
21,192,628 - - . 21,192,628 - 21,192,623
467,731 - - - 467,731 - 467,731
5474 - - - 5474 - 5474
30,488 - - - 30488 (10,573} 19.815
21,696,321 - - - 21,696,321 (10,673) _ 21,685,648
25,191,655 54,757 269,902 323659 25516314 (10,673) 25,505,641

. : 50,670 (50670 - - - -

25,191 655 105427 219232 324659 25,516,314 (10,673) 25,505,641
£.185,534 . - - 6,185,534 - 6,185,534
566,122 - - - 566,122 - 366,122
295,004 - . - 295,094 - 205,004
6,547,224 - - - 6,547,224 - 6,547,224
2,219,141 - - - 2,219,141 - 2219141
3,430,087 - . - 3,430,087 - 3430,087
975,245 - - - 975,245 . 975,245
439,366 - . - 489,366 - 489,366
135,920 77355 - 77355 413,275 - 413275

- 10,673 . 10,673 10,673 {10,670 -
21,043,733 88,028 - 88,028 21,131,761 (10673} 21,121,088
1,592,592 - - - 1,592,532 - 1,592,532
22.636,265 ‘38,028 - BR028 22724203 (10,673 22713620
2,555,390 17,399 219,232 236,631 2,792,021 - 2,792,021
2,212,160 - - - 2,212,100 N 2,212,100
(78,4213 - - - (78,421} - (78.421)
1,067 - - - 1,067 . 1,067
(173.294) - - - (173,20%) - (1I13.294)
124476 - - - 124,476 - 124,476
4641318 17,399 219,232 236631 4877.949 - 4,877,949
4,681,076 144,832 125197 270,029 4951,105 - 4,951,105

§ 9322394 § 162231 § 344429 5 SDAGED S5 9820084 § - S 9.829.052
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Clients

Insurance companies
Medicaid

Medicare

Allowance
" Total

See Independent Auditor’s Report

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATE
Analysis of Accounts Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Accounts Contractual Accounts
Receivable Allowances and Receivable
Beginning of Other Discounts Change in End of
Year Gross Fees Given Cashi Receipts  Allowance Year
F 280,322 5 800,353 S (453,673) § (392.373) § - $ 234,629
261,142 4,122,394 (1,910.660) (2,188,163) - 284,713
272,096 21,080,339 (775,002) (20,445,204) - 132,229
173,067 944,798 (309,592) (244,338) - 563,935
(274,041) - - - 56,662 (217.379)
$ 712,586 $26947,884 $  (3.448.927) $ (23,270,078) § 56,662 $ 998,127

-25-



Pablic sunport and revenues:'
Publi¢ sui-;pur::
Federal
State of New Hampshire - BBH
State and local funding
Other public suppast
Total public support

Revenues:
Program service fees; pet
Other seryice jncome «
Rental income
Onher
- Total revenes

Total public suppott and revenues
Total expenses

Change in net assels from operations

Not-operating revenue and expenses:

Interest imcome

Tnvestment income / (loss)

Fait valuz gain on interest rale swap
Total non-cperaiing

Charge in nei asgets

THE MENTAL H EALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
L¥B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
Schedule ol Program Revenues und Expenses

For thé Year Ended June 30, 2023

Housing / Assertive Total

Cotlaborative Supportive  Aduits Multi- Endependent Community Agute Other’ Progran Aduiin- Total

Children Care | Elders Employment Service Livipg Treaiment " Carg Non-BBH Services istrafive Agency
3322059 S 66134 S =78 102453 8 452,050 5 1,066,170 § 86,589 § 85802 § - 2,081,357 ¢ -5 2181357
146,464 . - B 104,104 720,165 237,501 1,445,039 - 2,653,273 - 2650273
- 15.833 - - £,000 - . . . 23,833 B 23,833
8,000 (4e4) 42,167 1,354 743 04 5475 323 - 15152 .50 75,802
476,623 §1,563 42,167 103,807 582,897 1,786,429 329565 15300064 - 4934215 S0 4,934,265
8651804 1126374 LEG4SMAT.  SE62360  T40L896  1,387.063 908,326 95,127 461922. 22,559,656 22,559,656
251,495 135,480 36,960 B 102,193 23 3,971 993 26,722, 557,539 - 557,839
. - - . . - . - . - 5836 5,826
- kL] - .- 1851 - - ! 1387 5:156 083
8903389, 261,889 . 1201654 562,360 7505940 _ 1,387.088 912,297 896,121 288,644 23,119,382 11,022 23,630.404
9,380,012 1343452 1243321 666,167 8088837 3,173,517 1241862 2477285 488,644 28,053,597 C1L072 28,064,669
6,757,640 _ 1439927 1,172,704 561766 7224022 3,530,181 842336 2,873,136 624,073 25025855  1,766,971." . 26,792,526

= -
2,622,372, (95,473) 71,047 104,401 864,815 (356,664) 399,526 (443351)  {133.429) 3027742 (1,755.899) 1,271,843
M - - - - . - - - - 32,841 12,841
. . - - . - - - - - 85,038 45,039
. . . . . . - . - - 48,939 48.93%
. - R - - - - - - - 166,819 166,319
$ 2622372 5 (96475 3 TO4T 8 104401 S BG4N1S S (356664 5 399526 5 (#4851} S (135429) S 3027742 S (1569,080) 5 LA38.662
.
u . -26-

See Independent Auditor's Report
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Personnel costs:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefils
Payroll taxes

Accounting/audit fees

Advertising

Conferences, conventions and meetings

Depreciation

Equipmeni rental

Insurance

Interest expense

Legal fees

Membership dues

Occupancy expenses

Oflice expenses

Cther expenses

Other professional fees

Progeam supplies

Travel,

Tolal expenses

THE MENTAL HEAL TH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
DVB/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
Sthedule of Program Expenses
For the Year Ended June-30, 2023

Housing / Assertive

Collaborative Suppurtive f\dull,sMulli_' Independent  Community Acute Other Program - Admin- Total

Children Care Etders Emplaymeny Service Living Treatment Care “Non-BBH Services istmtive Apency
5 4,791,689 § 984,255 S5 #87.279 § 40LRSR S 5232432 S L425516 § 558726 § 2229314 S 358,588 S 16869657 S 992,920 $17.862377
797,942 179,715 173,675 15,222 851,241 320,752 142,612 230,188 44,601 2,816,948 187,245 3,004,193
316,616 71,157 62,796 %501 374,141 105,824 39,135 163,520 24,631 1,213,731 68,690 128242
2491 506 93 234 2,958 051 297 1,057 265 8,952 66,722 15,674
- 6,830 - - - - - 380 27,169 34399 17,119 51,508
11,557 2,825 - 140 24,287 1,078 60 4,532 1,382 45,861 4,754 50,615
105,495 30,598 6,568 4,430 §7.657 27242 9,523 A2.968 8,861 313342 19005 332,347
10,061 2,248 435 822 1,110 3,788 1,092 3,950 {571y 32,935 632 33,567
1000 - 600 - 2,001 - 680 1,560 200 7.041 17,131 124,172
36,824 12,818. 2,900 274 21,828 3,598 1,560 7,268 30,380 117,450 11,658 129,168
- . - - 398 - 2,685 . “ - 5,083 27,403 30,546
566 290 - 339 7,040 83 n 260 75 8,668 #6430 75,098
237 484 51,087 13,020 11,436 198,964 1,481,221 18,3%0 69,068 19481 2,095,164 36486 2,131,047
156,326 36,027 13,494 11,319 153,220 60,518 17234 54,487 15,578 518,194 46,8388 565,082
17 - 138 - 1016 4,831 146 e - 6429 7.422 13,851
156,972 38,678 8,666 10,303 159,295 55,218 14,818 55872 18378 s18300 77,031 595,332
13,499 344 - n 12,148 7412 1,867 11,332 73,604 120,237 17,208 137,445
104,101 12,529 3,130 15.446 84,286 35043 32401 7,030 1,450 293,466 2,167 297,633
$ 6757640 § 1439927 5 LIT2774 §  S6L766 § 7224022 S 3530081 § 842336 § 2873136 S 624473 $25025855 S 1.766.971 §26,792.826

See Independent Auditor's Report
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CLM Center for Life

Management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name/Position

Maria Gudinas
Chairperson

David Hebert
Vice Chair

Joseph Crawford
Secretary

Michael Delahanty
Treasurer

Vic Topo
President & CEO

Vernon Thomas

Rebecca Sanborn

- David McPherson

Susan Davis

Chris Kotulak

Katie Resmini

Adam Burch
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VICTOR TOPO

President/Chie .ecutivé Ocer

Successful 32-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus ofi mission and
achieving results. Talent for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-

traditional behavioral

health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service

populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

¢ Operations o Strategic partnerships

* Reorganization and reinvention ¢ Strongrelationship with funders
® Team building and leadership » Community building

s Strategic planning * Innovation

o (Collaboration

Professional Experience

Center for Life Management - Derry, NH 1999 — Present
President/Chief Executive Officer
Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association including two residential facilities.

Key results:

o

Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from three to six.

Revenues increased from 6.5 million to 22 million leading to financial sustainability.
Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public
relations strategy while also rebranding CLM in 2004. ‘

Guided Board of Directors towards more accountability including higher expectation
from management and individual board members. :
Initiated and implemented Corporate Compliance Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer .

Increased year after year number of persons served starting with 3,400 to nearly 6,000.
Created and implemented strategy to integrate behavioral health care with physician
healthcare. Integrated behavioral health services into two Primary Care/Pediatric
Practices and two Specialty Practices in Southern New Hampshire.

Consolidated outpatient offices toward design and construction of new state of the art
26,000 square foot facility in 2007. Received national awards for design and use of
new facility.

Provided leadership and vision to oversee the development and implementation of an
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAISCE. Software now includes e-
prescribing and has begun acquiring Meaningful Use dollars with regular upgrades
over course of twenty years.

Adopted Neurostar Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) in 2010 as newest neuro
tech treatment for treatment resistant Major Depressive Disorder. First free standing
community mental health center in the U.S. to offer it.

Pathways, Inc. — Mentor, OH 1988 - 1999
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Started with managing a smail single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management.team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.



Docusign Envelope ID: DOAFESAA-B7EQ-4F36-8ABF-F873855C85CC

YICTOR TOPO

-Page 2-
Key results:

. In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio’s first 24 hour 7 days
a week in-home crisis stablhzatlon program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

o Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to our
community.

. Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.

] Created county’s only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).

) Pathways’ first long range strategic plan in 1992.

. Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center — Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager
Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.

Key results: _
® Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.
° Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.
° Designed and implemented agency’s first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)
Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS
Heritage United Way — Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission — Co-Chair
Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Iévideliced Based Practice Committee — Co-Chair
Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce — Board of Directors
Behavioral Health Network — Board of Directors
Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce — Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC)
Chairman, Board of Dlrcctors Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program — Graduate, Class of 2001



|
Docusign Envelope ID: DO9AFEBAA-BTE(-4F 36-8ABF-F873855C85CC

DIANA LACHAPELLE, CPA

Strategically focused leader with extensive operations, accounting arid financial management
experience. Possesses keen business acumen and decision making skill. Proven track record of working
collaboratively and driving change to optimize profitability.

Core Qualifications

» Strategic Planning * SOX Compliance * Internal Controls
* Revenue Cycle Management * Budgeting & Forecasting  Audit
* Financial Reporting-& Analysis  « Contract Negotiations * Labor Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

VICE PRESIDENT - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER : :

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d.b.a. Center for Life Management,
Derry, NH March 2020 to present -

Provide leadership and direction in the areas of finance, revenue cycle and cash management. Develop,
implement and evaluate strategic plans to improve operating performance. ‘

CHIEF EXECUTFIVE OFFICER '
Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, NH February 2018 to
February 2020

Leader of this for profit, 50-bed, acute care rehabilitation hospital and outpatient treatment center
reporting directly to the Regional President. Hospital is part of a publicly fraded healthcare system
comprised of 133 inpatient rehabilitation hospitals, 245 home health agencies and 82 hospice locations.

Key contributions and results:

° Strategic leadership to achieve discharge growth of 15% year over year for two consecutive years in
an industry where 3% growth is the norm. : ’

° Financial leadership to realize EBITDA growth year over year of 24% and 19% for 2018 and 201 9,
respectively. :

° Organizational and change management to improve employee engagement results by 16 basis points,

e Process improvement leadership to improve patient outcomes and satisfaction.

-

CONTROLLER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, NH January 2012 to
January 2018

Responsible for all financial aspects of the hospital including the development of the annual operating
plan, monthly analysis of results and execution of corrective actions as needed to ensure achievement of
planned results. Chief liaison between corporate finance and the hospital.
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Key contributions and results:

o Implemented cost reduction initiatives to improve profitability by 7%.

o Restructured outpatient operation to create a viable business unit, improving net income by 34%.

* Developed and executed a labor management plan to improve operatmnal efficiency and reduce full
time equivalents by 7%.

e Preceptor for newly hired Controllers.

CPA SERVICES

Diana C, Lachapelle, CPA, Bedford, NH 2003-2011

Provided accounting leadership and business solutions to clients including cash management,
forecasting, budgeting, financial statement preparation, tax preparation, and development of
internal controls.

DIRECTOR OF WORLDWIDE FOOTWEAR COST & FINANCIAL PLANNING
Timberland Corporation, Stratham, NH 1996-1999
o Responsible for all financial aspects of this $550 million manufacturing and sourcing
operation including accounting, forecasting, budgeting, reporting, product costing and audit;
o Partnered with the VP of Operations to achieve key cost reductions, as well as, improved
- reliability and quality resulting in actual performance exceeding budget by $6.9 million.

FINANCIAL MANAGER, CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP
Nashua Corporation, Nashua, NH 1993-1996

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young, Manchester, NH 1989-1992

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATION

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration; University of New Hampshire, Durham
Certified Public Accountant, State of New Hampshire )

Member of the American College of Healthcare Exécutives and Healthcare Financial
Management Association :

SYSTEM EXPERIENCE

Oracle Enterprise Performance Management System, Oracle PeopleSoft, Hyperion, Ceiner EMR
and reporting,-E-Time, Attendance Enterprise, Microsoft Office Suite, Ariba Contract
Management, Maven, Beacon, Tableau



Docusign Envelope ID: DIAFESAA-B7E0-4F36-8ABF-F8738556C85CC

ohGeE Toobta 12 posiiion where ican ma:améz_e my mligiayer. afmammeni ské%- palty:
voletiEe Gmeﬁt&mmewanedmrmmefsewmmmmﬁmmmm

the:healtt care environment.
CS

Frofessional ‘ . Healthcare Systemns Aligh, LEC ,
Puperionge. yeas | Notinghar, NH  fj0i0-Presént

w Prsmda wwimmm&a& mﬁd”fcal ;mmws anﬁ pmctztoaefs o establish sysiems
‘of niggrated hedthcars fiatinclodas prectice patlers; bifing strategles, quairty and
‘complidrice Stratety, policy development outoome: measurernant and supeniésm

P of Quality, Compliance  :CeiiteF foF Life Managéiiient, Derry; NH 112008 - Present

Mﬁfmﬂfﬁf;@;ﬁé@ﬁﬁ&ﬁmx
Senlor managam pasiion in mental health center Senvirig 6000 consumers
Responsibilites include development; mrpiememamn and mon?tmmg of egées ami
rsysiems b continuously improvs the qualty of services to consumers. Assirs wmg?
10 state and fedent regulations,
Beve!a;: and malntain systems o assure: fidefy fo evidence basaﬁ pra*iaoes
Confintiois developmant of EMR ahd associated staff tralning.
Esabiishiant] maintsin ovtome measures #nd their incarperaﬁan inio QUUR nitigtives.
Develop. g, implement projésts fo improve the qvafityof care:
Chalr o agency. Safely Commitiee;.

o o8 Lw g

1120061212008 .

SSWICBS - Pcrismauﬁt NH

Ras;mnssb!a for cimssa} admmsimﬁws and fscal maﬁagemen{ofsemm fine wﬁi&h
indlzdés 22 beé ﬁpa am psych@iﬁc lmﬁ Ps;\mhzamc Assessmsm and Refezral Sezvm

z

ﬁaspansib{e for 85 staff Qvamee the infegrt )
' Manageamw%budgemﬁo 5 millondollars,
¥ 'Ehazr Bmims Operations: iﬁeeﬁag {?acaifnaie fronthly meaﬁng of Hospital éeparimemai

C_m:_ha F Patient Fiti Gonimities. Anaigs S8 dewe%msm of datasysleme fo-
Tmérior patient ﬂwwghpm Dava!ep and implemient straegies toinipiove theeficlency of
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Portsmouth ngiouaz Hospltal 412005 - 412008:
Poﬂsmaum WH '

® Respcmi‘ts;e i’erﬁ}geémscai ahd a&m&iraﬁve funetioning of fthe Psye?&am mmeni

$ and Releimal Sefvics {PARS). Managé annual bitdget of 600K,

® Supemsxan of22 sﬁm?a;:swim  provide psychiatiic Crisis : asw:smams admi‘ssiw
Intake and refeiral 24 hours & day.

R Svpemsmm oversight and developmen! of ther !niefﬁepamﬁiaf Smm 3 Eiftciang Whe
“provide psychiatria essessment; “eonsuiiztion and. therepirto pmnis admﬁtaf medically 1o

Jthe hospita)!
.gj'reiemf?xau{z Services.  Community Fartriers; Dover, NH . 1472001412005

Raspcnsib%s Korfie  clinical, administrative and Snancial ¢perations cf tha Adult: meaﬁent
“Therapy, EAP, Admissions, Ermerency Services, Geraticand Atuts Senigh ¢ programs:
{PHPAOF} senving. Stafiord | County: Supem&ad 4 mangegs mpms:b& for 26 st
ianage annuaf budget of 8 miion doliars. ‘

Clinical Directorof. Riverbeis Community Mentsl Heaith CFF 9120001412007
Cnmmumty Suppoﬁ?mg “Goneorg, NH '

Resmibfe fo: the tiinica), administalive afid fistal ope;aﬁansaf gmg:ams semng 554
CONSTSTSWith sevele and pems&ntmemai Hiness, Difeclly s siipervise 5 Mdnagers
ngSpGﬁSiéie for60 staf: Davalgpmient and. oversight of annual budget of 4 miian éeit&rs

“Tréatitent Tee__am Riverbend Cominutilty Mental Health cir B/1998 812000
erﬁmator Comaﬂi ?\EH

& cﬁn cal Bnd administiative Stipeision of a Inultidisciplinary tedim of 12 diect eafe staf.

San:ing &n avérage of 100 inthiduials wit! severe and persistent menta] iifness

-ffeamrf;eaéér - Strafférd Guidanse Centé; Dover, N 111893 - 8/1996
® Chinlcal and edministrabive siipenvisio of B diregt cams%a?f ‘Sehing an dverade of 80
mdiv%duafswﬁzmmmiws mental lingss. _
= Developed the §mi n{eragencsf h*aa%meni tear {0 sEve individG3s With seeigalid -
pem%stenﬁ menitpliiness eng developniehital dmbiﬁ&as in m

: Glinical Case Manager. . Strafford Giitdance Center; Dwen m»f © 41992 - 124993

% Providsd psychotherapy and case ianegément services t iidivduals vilf severs and
;é;r;'!a? finess and subétance abuse Issues as par of The (}oﬂﬁrwaas '
Tmaﬁne_._ Teanistidy mmizgh Datmouthi Colege.
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e

te Bl B
finestionzt
Biporlange

R e R D T

Asssstaﬂ! Director * Residential Resolrces; Keeng, MH 11585 ~"171982°

‘Behavioral Specialist

= Dirscted o mmmmﬁmwa«cﬁv&w@%mpm ‘and 3 suppoited
Ining ariangemen's senving people with deiachental disabiities, Provide bebavioral
corsuliation toindividuals with behavioraliuncional challenges. ‘
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Clinica! Supemser Marchestar, NA
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House Manzger ?méieg‘a;;;eacepsywamgfcﬁi Center 611084 - /1585
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Adjunct Faculty New England Collegs; Hennier, NH 811994 - Pregent
VNN BT~
«  Teathgreduste and uridemradusle courses in peychiclogy, conseng, progrant’
-tevelopment and evaluation
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Degree Programin’ New England Collegs; Hanriker, NH HO93 - 32002
Mental Heglth Counsefing . ' '
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= Provided m&emac sdvising and menmnng loshdens,
#  Facoly sécriitment; supervision efd mionitering &f acadusire goality

Currcultn Constflat  New England College; Henriker, N ;ﬁé‘;’f -
® t}waﬁcwd ciifituta for a cettificate arl CAGS ln thé niégratian c%ﬁehami hewdh

“inip pnmry maticing,
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: TMHCSNH CLM Permanent Supportive Housing Continuum of Care
Vic Topo ‘ CEO . ~ $0.00 . $223,334.28
Diana Lachapelle CFO . ' $0.00  $187,387.72
Steve Arnauit - VP Clinical Operations ' $0.00 $174,138.12
' $0.00 _ %0.00
$0.00 _ $0.00.
$0.00 - $0.00

No key persoﬁnel salary paid by this grant.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori 4. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, Nt 03301

Enfefim ‘Commissioner GO3-2759544  1-B00-852.3345 Ext. 954
) Fax: 603«27 1-4332 TDD Access: 1.800.738:2964 wew.dhbsab gov
Katja 5. Fox
‘Thirector
May 26, 2023
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House:
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
MUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Hurhan Services, Division for Behavioral Heaith,
to eriter into a Sole Source contract with The Mentai Health Ceriter for Southern New Hampshlre
DBA Center for Life Management (VC#174116) Derry, NH:in the amount of $4, 400,280 for the
provision of a housing services continuum of care project, with the option to renew for up to four
(4) additional years, effective July-1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, through July:31,
2027 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated. to be avallable in State Fiscal Years 2024 through 2028, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

08 95-43423010-?9270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF MEALTH AND: HUMAN
8YCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVIGES HOMELE&S & HOUSING, HOL%S%N@ SHELTER PROGRARM

Fnsizt:aar Class ! Account Class Tﬁlg | JOh Numhe%rr | A':ioﬁlrtt,
2024 '074-500885. | ‘Grants for Pub:Asst and Relief_ T8D | $1,033.341
T 2025 | 074-500585 | Grants for Pub Asst and Relef-| 18D $1,100,070
2026 | 074500585 | Grants for PubAsstand Refief | TBD | $1,100,070
2027 © 074-500585 | Grants for Pub Asstand Relief{  TBD "$1,100, 070
2028 074-500585 | Grants for Pub Asst and Reiief | - 180 $5&729
I _Total | 54,400, zae- :

EXPLANATION
This request is Sole Source because fedaral regulations require all procurement efforts

-to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing'and Urban Development (HUD) which requires

the Department to specify the vendor's name during the annual, federal, ‘Continuum of Care (CoC)
competitive application process for up to a year prior to the grant award being issued, As the
Collaborative Applicant, the Department is required to issue a Request for Proposals, through the
Continuum, based. on the HUD CoC Program Notice of Funding Opportumty (NOFQ). HUD
reviews and scores vendor applications based on federal rank and review policy, and scoring
tools, created to match thefederal NOFO. HUD subsequentiy awards funding based on strict
federa! criteria specifying eltgxb!e activities, populations to be served, expected pefformance



His Excallency, Govemnor Chistopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 20f2

‘outcomes. and ttme frames for the application competition and subsequent Departmental
agreements. The Depariment réceives natification of the awards and signad grant agreements
from HUD several months later; at which time agreements, such as the one contained in this
reques!, can be executed.

A total of approximately 65 households will be served at any given time annually.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor will provide a housing
services continuum of care project that includes the following category:

» Permanent Supportive Housing {PSH) services that deliver long-term rental and ieasing
assistance for participants with a disabllity, as defined by The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). PSH includes supportive services designed to meet the individual
needs of program participants without baing a prerequisite for rental or ieasing assistanca.

Additionally, the Contractor will work to maximize each particib‘ant's ability to live more
independently by, providing connections to community and malnstream services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual .reports provided by the
Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agresmants.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services avallable, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness i unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Statewida.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance™"Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NHO003L 17002215, and NHO014L1T002215.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available; General Funds will not.
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

st~

Lori A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

ﬂeDeparimenz of Health and Human Serpices’ Mission ig to join.communities and fomilies
in providing opportunities for citizens io achisve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: C24AB2EE-CEA5-42B0-8D53-5C85E25EE204
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Contintium of Care CLM (S8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
" The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
: : GENERAL PROVISIONS
1, IDENTIFICATION. }
1.1 State Agency Name 1'2  State Agency Address

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services | 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name - 1.4 Contracior-Address-
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire 10 Tsienneto Rd
DBA Center for Life Management Derry, NH 03038 _ : o
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number, 1.7-Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation "
Number _
¥ -(05:95-42-423010- | 7#31/2027 | $4,400,280
(603) 4341577 75270000
9 Contracting Officer for State Agency ' 1.10 State Agency Telephon-c'Numbcr
Robert W. Moore, Director 1 (603)271-9631
1.11 Contractor Signature 1 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

vic Tope
Ra%/2023 ceo

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja 5. Fox

Dale: '
6} 872023 Director _
2 N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

116 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
Docuslgnedby; = '

By: ?%ij Hunsino

1117 ApprovatByHEEBvernor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

On6/5/2023 "

G&C Hern number: ' G&C Meeting Date:

by 23
Page 1 of 4 ' U
Contractor Initials

Date 67172023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, -acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, orboth, identified-and more particularly
described in the altached EXHIBIT B which i5 imcorporated
herein by reference {“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and al) obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become efiective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™),

1.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective'Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability te the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to " pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed,
Contractor must compiete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and contintied approgriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, climinates or otherwise modifies Lhe
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds, In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right lo withhold payment until such funds
become avaifable, if ever, and shall have the right to redice or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contracter notice of such reduction or termination.
The Staté shall not be required to transfer:-funds from any other’
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT, .

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
aré identified and more pariicularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated hierein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State-of the contract price shall be the
onty and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be-the only and the complete

Page 2 of 4

o

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Siate sh%ll_
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset. from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor-under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c of any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstariding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circurnstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. '

6.1 In connection with Lhe performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities- whick impose any obligatich. or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity Jaws. 1n addition, ifthis Agreement is
funded in any part by manies of the United States, the Contractor
shal! comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and stalutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractar shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the: Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexuval
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrées to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and azcounts for
the purpose of dscertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services: The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws..

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and ‘for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, whe is materially involved in' the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. 1n the event of any
dispute concerning the interpreiation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

bs
Contractor Initials E—

Date
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissicns of the
Contractor shall canstitute an event of default hereunder (*Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure 1o perform the Scmccs satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evert of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30 days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminaté this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor duririg the
period from the date of such-notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid 1o the Contractor;

-8.2.3 give the Contractor a written noticé specifyingthe Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreemenit and pursue any of its remedies at law.or in equity, or
both,

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provtsmns hereof afler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard (0 that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to-enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor,

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8§, the Stite may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in wholg or
in pant, by thirty:(30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement,

9.2 Inthe event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to -the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15} days after the date
.of ‘termination, a report {“Termination Repont") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report: shall
‘be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,

if. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reasen of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictoria) reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, compuier printouts, noles,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all-whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or.purchased with funids provided for that purpose.

under this Agreemerit, shall be the property of the State, and

shall be returned'1o the State upon demand or upsn termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter #1-A or other existing law: Disclosure of data requires
prior writien approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an indépendent contractor; and is ncither an agént nor an
employee. of the State. Neither the Contracior nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have suthority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees,

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writién notice, which
shall be provided to the ‘State at least fifeen (15) days prior 10
the assignment, and a written consent of the State, For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Conirol. shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect awner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voling shares or similar equity ifterests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subslannaliy all
of the assets of the Contractor,

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contracter withoul prior written notice and consent of thé State,
The State is entitled 1o copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in-a subcontract or an assignment-agreement to which itisnota
party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempied by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all clzims,
iabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or cdpyright infrihgement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which

Page 3 of 4

may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or om'issC-ihc

Contractor Initials =
Date 6/1/2023
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct, The State shall not
‘be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph [ 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State; which immunity is ticreby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survwc the
termination of this Agrecment,

14, INSURANCE.

14.]1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require. any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in foree, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial gencral lability ingurancc against all claims
of ‘bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and 7

[4.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be

on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State’

of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
. issued by insurers licenised in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance-required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish 1o the Contracting Officer identificd
in black 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance. required under this Agreement no
later than ten {10} days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The centificate(s) of insurance and any
rencwals thereof shall beattached and are incorporated herein by
reference,

15. WORKERS” COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractot agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA ¢hapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Coniractor is subject to the requircments
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assighee to seture and maintain,
payment of Workers® Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be

attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State

shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation_premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontracior or employee of Contractor,

[6. NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prépaid, in a United States
Post-Cffice addressed 1o the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein:

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by av instrument in writing signed by the
parties herelo and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshice unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or poliey.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and constreed in accordance with the,
laws of the Stateof Néew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is'the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intént, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising ont of this Agreement shall be brought and
matintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

bétween the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT

A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37'(as modified in EXHIBIT A} shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend ‘to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemeat are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, medify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning.of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or moditying
provisions set forth in the auached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jun'sdiclion to be
conteary to any-state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full f'orce and effect.

24. ENTIRE ACREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be

. executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed an original, constitules the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect 10 the subject matter

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof. .
Workers® Compensation laws in  connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
D&
Page 4 of 4 _ ' Vi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and'Human Services
Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT A

1.

w

Revisions to Standard Aqreement Proviéions_

Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is ahwend_ed
as follows: :

3.1. " Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to
the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State’ of New
Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1, 2023 ("Effective Date").

Paragraph 3., Effective: Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3. as follows: '

3.3. The parties may extend-the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreemerit of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council, : . '
Paragraph 12., Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows: ‘

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the Contractor
and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with all’
subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed, and if applicable, a
Business Associate Agreement in accordance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements shall specify how
corrective action shall be managed. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as ’
necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of all
subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify the State of any
inadequate subcontractor performance. '

_ o —os
$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 _ A12 Coniractor Initials L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBIT B

1. Statement of Work

Scope of Services

1.1. Continuum of Care ,
1.1.1. Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) (Effective July 1, 2023 except -Section

11.1.3)

1.1.1.1.

1.1.1.2.

1.1.1.3.

1.1.1.4,

1.1.1.57

1.1.1.6.

1417,

1.1.1.8.

1.1.1.9.

The Contractor must provide PSH, which is long-term assistance
for participants with a disability as defined by The U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Contractor must
provide assistance to program participants until the participant(s)
chooses to exit the project or is terminated from the project.as
determined by HUD regulations, 24 CFR 578

The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program (herein Family Housing | — FH1}, in this agreement, that
is targeted to serve 13 households comprised of 37 individuals.

The Contractor must provide a Permanent Supportive Housing
program (herein Supportive Housing — SH), effective August 1,
2023, in this agreement, that is targeted to serve 52 individuals.

The Contractor must provide tenant-based rental assistance
through the FH1 and SH programs that is permitted for greater than
24 months, does not have a designated end date, and must be

"~ administered in accordance with the policies and procedures

established by the Continuum, as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a)(9).
Tenant based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside.

The Contractor must provide supportive services designed to meet
the needs of the program participants.

The Contractor must ensure that program participants are not
required to participate in supportive services as a condition of their
housing.

The Contractor must ensure PSH projects provide supportive
services for participants that will ensure successful retention in or
help in obtaining permanent housing, including -all supportive
services, regardless of funding.

The Contractor must assign a case manager to each participant
upon program entry.

The Contractor must develop a housing stability plan with program
participants that outlines the steps to be taken, including but not

limited to: C
T§8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initlalg .
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1.1.1.9.1. Increasing both earned and non-earned income;

1.1.1.8.2,  Ensuring that program participants receive individual
assistance in obtaining the benefits of mainstream
health, social, and employment programs for which
they are eligible to apply and that meet their needs;
and

1.1.1.93.  Maintaining permanent housing or facilitating exits to
positive permanent housing destinations.

1.1.1.10. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service
needs of the program parucupants and adjust the services
accordingly.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1.
1.2.2.

1.2.3.
1.2.4.

1.25.
1.2.6.

1.2.7.

1.2.8.

The Contractor must adhere to all tefms and conditions as set forth in the

‘approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System,

For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

" The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested

by the Department.

The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:
1.2.7.1.  Utilization of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;
and

1.2.7.1.2.  Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in. HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not IiTito:
vt
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1.2.9.

1.2.10.

1.2.11,

1.2.12.

1.2.13.

housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed
resource provision;

1.2.8.2.  Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
- experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
_ safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.84. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
Compensation funds, help filing for restramlng orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services;-and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to education resources,
school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the
program partlmpants and adjust the services accordingly.

The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance
misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

The Gontractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants’ connections with

community and mainstream services, to increase- independence and

household income to sustain permanent housing.

The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
includé, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.2.12.1.  Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is availabte, as requested by the Department
and/ or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector -General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (Cotgant,
v
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1.2.14.

1.2.15.

1.2.16.

1.2.17.

1.2.18.

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials -
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in order to-make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are not fimited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO} CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents. ’

The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate  HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD reguiations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing (HEARTH) - Act of 2009,

https://www.hud qovisites/documents/HAAA_HEARTH.PDF:

1.2.18.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary-
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract,

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV):

http:f/glhrn.org/wordpress1/wp-

content/uploads/2018/08/Comparable-Database-for-DV-
NNEDV.pdf. '

1.2.18.3. The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data éntry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit 1.for Privacy requirements.

@
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1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with al! record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103. '

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but not .
limited to:

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the
following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC: , :

1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Gontractor must
maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The
: Contractor must maintain records that establish “at
risk of homelessness™ status of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of
Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation
of each program participant who moved to a different .
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to: '

1.220.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, daling violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program paricipant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim
service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or written

certification by the program patmnt-
vt
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;ﬁh\*&— N to whom the violence occurred or by
= BN S the head of household; and
e - 7 .1.2:201.3.2. _The. reasonable beliefof |mmm\nt
- - T threat “of further domestic violence, .
_ < i dating violence, or sexual assault or—_.
e~ — - ———stalking, which wouid include threats

from a th:rdparty such-as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
cbservation by the housing or service
provider, a ‘letter or other

) 4 documentation from a victim service
- ™ provider, = social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; -communication
records: from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including: emails, voicemails, text
messages, and social media posts; or

a written certification by the program
participant to whom’ the violence

i occurred or the head of household.

1.2.20.2, Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2, Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
slatement;

1.2.20,2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assels held by the
program participant; and i

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials ™
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1.2.20.3.

1.2.20:4.

.1.2.20.5.

1 .2.20.2.2.4 Income received before the date of: the
evaluation.

1.220.23. To the extent that ‘source documents are
unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

1.2.20.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third- party
verification are unobtainable, the written .certification
by the program participant of the amount of inconie
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaiuation.

Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of
homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness -status, as

¢ applicable, the Contractor must -keep records. for each program

participant that document

1.220.3.1, The services and assistance provided to Ahat
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an. annual assessment of
services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case
management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(i)(F). and ’

1.2.20.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

Housing Standards. The Contractor must rétain documentation of
compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports. g

Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contraclor must maintain records that document compliance with:

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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1.2.22,

1.2.211.
1.2.21.2.

1.2213. -

The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(c);

The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and

The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d). .

The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1,2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.2.24.

1.2.23.1.

1.2.23.2.

1.2.23.3.

1.2.23.4.
1.2.235.

1.2.23.6.

The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

The faith-based aclivities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c) for affimatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and ’

Procurement reguirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

Confidentiality. in addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security

requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and

implement
1.2.241,

1.2.24.2.

1.2.24.3.

written procedures to ensure:

All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

The address or location of any family violerice project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

The-address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality,

2. Contract Administration

2.1.  The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the Department’s Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS), including training
in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws. To't

§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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2.2.

%

possnble BHS must notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
days of the change.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1.

3.2

3.3

34.

3.5.

The Contractor must submit an Annual Perfor}hance Report {(APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the form
required, or specified, by the Department.

‘The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of
the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year COC Notice of Funding
Opportunlty (NOFO).

The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department, in a
format specified by the. Department, for the provision .of other key data and metrics,
including client-level demographic, petformance, and service data.

)

4. Exhibits Incorporated | .

41,

4.2.

4.3.

The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually {dentifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 180 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit 1, -
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

The Contréctc_)r must manage. all confidential data related to this Agreem“ent in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additiona! Terms

Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

51.
5.1.1,  TheContractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State -has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
‘§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 B-2.0 B Contractor Initials —
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requirements under this Agreément S0 as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2 Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance:; Culturally_ and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS)

5.2.1.

The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to efisure meaningful access
to programs.and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

5.3.3.

5.3.4.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.” V

All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

The Department must retain copyright ownership‘for any‘and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1.  Brochures;

5.3.3.2. Resource direcfories;
53.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;
5.3.3.4. Posters; and

5.3.3.5. Reporls

The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under’this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4, Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

54.1.

$§5-2024-0BH-12-CONTI-01
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In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any.Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon-the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit must be reguirgd for
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the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and wili at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. in
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facitities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the'local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations

- 9.6.1.

5.5.2.

5.5.3.

5.5.4.

6. Records

If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ -or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures.

Eligibility determinations must be made on forms brovided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

In"addition to the determination forms réquired by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file 'on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation. regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor heréby covenants and

. agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an

application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of histher right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1.

6.1.2,

$§-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-0
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Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor. .

All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly refiect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,

. without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of

costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requis'r'iw:sfor
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6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

materials, inveritories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to detemmine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to

CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date

and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state
or federal Jaw or regulation.

During the ‘term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audlt examination, excerpts
and transcripls.

if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Depariment retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are dtsallowed or

- to recover such sums from the Contractor.

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 B-2.0 Contraclor Initials
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EXHIBITC

Payment Terms.

1. This Agreement is funded bjf:

1.1, "100% Federal funds, Title X1V Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-
Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on March 28, 2023, by the
US Dept of Housing and Urban Development, Continuum of Care Program,

Assistance Listing # 14.267, FAIN NHO003L1T002215, and NHO014L1T002215.
2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as & Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.
22.  The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Con'tracto_,r'must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the Department
no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which
the services were providejd. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

31, Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services. -

3.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. '

3.3. Identifies and requests;payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous month.

34.  Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payrol records, receipts for purchases,
and proof of expenditures; as applicable.

3.5. Is completed, dated and retumed to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes -supporting documentation, and is

emailed to housingsupportsinvoices@dhhs nh.gov or mailed to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services
129 Pleasant Street -
Concord, NH 03301

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of the 'submitted invoice.

5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified
in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, Completion Date,

8.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances’ eliveen State

§5-2024-DBH-12.CONTI-01 c2.0 Contraclor Initials s
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EXHIBITC

Fiscal Years and budget class lines. through the Budget Office may be made by written
agreement of both paries, without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

7. Audits,

7.4.  The Contractor must email an annuai audit to dhhs act@dhhs.nh.gov if any of the
following conditions exist:

7.1.1.

Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000, or more, in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year. -

Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuart to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lil-b.

Condition C - The Contractor is a public. company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations tg submit an-
annual financial audit.

Condition D - The contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal
funds, during the fiscal year, is exempt from' Federal Monitoring
Requirements, except as noted in 2 CFR 200.503, but records must be
available for review, or audit, by appropriate officials of the Federal
agency, pass through enlity, and ‘Government Accountability Office
(GAQ). Federal awards expended as a recipient or a subrecipient are
subject to audit under this part. The payments received for goods or
services provided as a contractor are not Fedeéral awards. Section §
200.331 sets forth the considerations in determining whether payments
constitute a Federal award or a payment for goods or services provided
as a contractor. i

7:2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single Audit performed
by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in
accordance with_the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requnrements for Federal

awards.
7.21.

The Contractor must submit'a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
associated corrective action plans. The Contractor must submit
quarterly progress reports on the status of implementation of the
corrective action plan.

7.3.  IfCondition B or Condition-C exists, the Contractor must submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor’s fiscal year.

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hﬂuman Services

Continuum of Care CLM

7.4.

7.5,

EXHIBIT C

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all
payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, ~or which
have been dlsallowed because of such an exception.

If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the |
Contractor shall submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the
DPepartment, utmznng the guidelines set forth by the Comptroller General of the
United States in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program

Activities, and Functions,” within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal

year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Reqmrements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

8. Project’Costs: Payment Schedule; Rewew by the State

- 8.

8.2.

8.3.

Pro;ect Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” means all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as' determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment, in accordance with Public Law 102-550, as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State All subcontractors shall

meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

Continuiim of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program cornponents
permanent housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in
some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under the
applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,
and Permanent Housing-Rapid ReHousing component project’. Administrative
costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject ta the restrictions
on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single prOJect found in24 CFR
578.87(c).

Match Funds:

8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matchzng funds, as required by
HUD regulatiens and policies described in 24‘CFR 578.73.

8.3.2, Match funds shall be documented with each payment request.

8.3.3. ° The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with
no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions
from other sources.

834, The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash Match, or in-Kind Match, for
the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart-D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

$5-2024-DEH-12-CONTI-01 C2.0 ' Contractor indtials _ S
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EXHIBIT &

8.3.4.1.  The Contractor must substantiate the cash match in a
commitment letter, and then must be tracked through the
Contractor's financial statements, general ledgers, and
other records that reflect yearly financial status to show that
the.cash was spent on eligible program expenses within the
grant term, '

8.35. The cash match written commitment must be documented on the
committing agency's letterhead and must be signed and dated by an
authorized representative of the agency providing the cash match. The
documentation, at a minimum, must include the following:

8.3.5.1.  Amount of cash to be provided for the project.
8.3.5.2.  Specific date the cash will be available to the project.

8.3.5.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the cash match will be
contributed.

8.3.5.4.  Allowable activities to be funded by the cash match.
Documentation of expended match must include:

8.3.5.4.1. Agreement for cash match.

8.354.2. Cash match tracking which is done according
to general accounting principles in the
general ledger.

8.3.5.4.3. Source documentation that cash match is
spent on eligible activities under CoC
Program interim rule.

8.3.6. The Contractor must maintain records of the source and use of
contributions made to satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.7. If the Contractor utilizes in-Kind Match, the Contractor must ensure the
following requirements are met;

83.71.  The in-kind property, equipment, or goods must be
substantiated in a commitment letter and must be tracked
by the subrecipient agency to demonstrate that these items
were delivered to the project, and/or, to its participants,
during the grant term.

8.3.7.2.  Written commitments for in-kind property, equipment, or
goods must be documented on the committing agency's
letterhead and must be signed and dated by an authorized
representative of the agency providing the in-kind match.
The documentation, at a minimum, must include the

following: :ns
§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01 C2.0 Contractor iniials
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8.3.8.

8.3.9.

§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01.
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EXHIBIT C

83.7.21. Description and value of the donated:
property, equipment, or goods;

8.3.7.2.2. Specific date the property, equipment, or
goods will be made available to the project;

8.3.7.2.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the property,
equipment, or goods will be contributed; and

8.3.7.2.4. Method used to determine the value of the
property, equipment, or goods

in-Kind Services must be substantiated in a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), and then must be tracked by the recipient or
subrecipient to show that the services were delivered to program
participants during the grant term. Any services or benefits-committed to
a program participant rather than the recipient or subrecipient through
an MOU are generally ineligible to be counted as match.

8.3.8.1.

8.3.8.2.

Written commitments of in-kind services, during the
application, must be initially documented on the committing
agency’s letterhead. The document must be signed and
dated by an authorized representative of the agency
providing the in-kind services.

2l

An MOU must be in place between the
recipient/subrecipient and service provider by the time of
grant execution and must include detail of the in-kind
services, their value, and the calculation method to be used
in determining their value. Any services provided prior to the
execution of the MOU cannot be counted towards match.

Each MOU must;

8.3.9.1.
8.3.9.2.
8.3.9.3.

8.3.9.4.
8.3.9.5.

8.3.9.6.

Establish the unconditional commitment to provide the
services, provided that the project is selected for-funding by
the CoC and HUD. )

Specify the services to be provided to the project.

List the profession of the person who will provide the
services.

Include the hourly cost of the services.

List the grant and fisca! year to which the in-kind match will
be contributed.

Detail the system to be used to document the actual quantity
and value of the services provided to program participants

during the grant term. C
c-2.0 Conlsadlor hilials, .
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8.3.10.

8.3.11.

,EXHIBIT C

During the grant term, the actual.in-kind services provided to participants
must be documented. The documentation must include the following: -

8.3.10.1. Quantity of services provided.
8.3.10.2. Value of the services,
8.3.10.3. Da'te(s) on which the services were provided.

Subrecipients must request information from third-party  service
providers on in-kind service match activity at least annually and are
responsible for verifying that the match is eligible and related to program
participants served in the operating year

8.4.  Payment of Project Costs:

8.4.1.

8.4.2.

The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for
actual, eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfiiment of this agreement,
and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as spegcified. in
the applicable Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject
to the availability of sufficient funds.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as
eligible and allowable costs as stated in these Payment Terms. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for
any other expenses. ,

8.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

8.5.1.

8.5.2.

8.5.3.

. 854,

$85-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-M
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At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial
Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor
and all payments made to date.

Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are
not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expendilures, informing the Contractor of any such disallowance,

If the State disallows costs for which paymant has not yet been made, it
shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in

. the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or

regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services,

products, required report submissions, as detailed in th@eement}, or
' vr
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EXHIBIT C

NH-HMIS data entry requirements, have not been satisfactorily completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Expense Elzglb:hg

9.1, * Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall
utilize Continuum of Care Program funds, as. specified in these Payment Terms
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

9.2.  Operating Expenses:
9.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

9.2.1.1.
! 9.2.1.2.
9.2.1.3,

9.2.1.4.

9.2.1.5.
9.2.16.

Maintenance and repair of housing.

Property taxes and-insurance (including property and car).

Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major
systems of the housing (provided that the payments must be
based on the useful life of the system and expected
replacement cost).

Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50)

percent of the units or area is paid for with grant funds.

Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

Furniture and equipment.

9.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

9.2.2.1.
9.2.2.2.

9.2.2.3.

9.2.2.4.

Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

Operating costs of emérgency shelter and supportive service-
only facilities.

Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the
lease.

Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible below is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using:
Continuum of Care program funds, Staff training and costs of
obtaining professional licensuré or certifications needed to
provide supportive services are not elrglbie costs.

9.3. Supportive Services

9.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in
the permanent housing program.

9.3:2. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participapts who are unaccompanied homeles

585-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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EXHIBITC

living with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
'sexuai assault, or stalking.

9.3.3. Ellglble costs shall include;

9.3.3.1.

9.3.3.2.

9.3.3.3.

9.3.3.4.

9.3.3.5.

. 9.3.36.

9.3.3.7.

9.3.3.8.

- 9.3.3.9.

58-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the
assessment required by 578.53(a) (2).

Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving
costs are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving
company.

Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging,
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized

- services to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are

eligible costs.

Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care,
and providing child-care vouchers,; for children from famifies
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals and
snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible.

Education Services, The ‘costs of improving knowledge and
basic educational skills are eligible.

Employment assistance and job  training. The c¢osls of
establishing and operating employment assistance and job
training programs are eligible, including classroom, online
andfor computer instruction, on-thejob instruction, services
that assist individuals in secunng employment, acquiring
learning skills, and/or increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants. in
employment assistance and job training programs is also an
eligible cost.

Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
participants is eligible.

Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting
eligible program participants to locate, obtain, and retain
suitable housing are eligible.

Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under-the supervision of licensed
attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that
interfere with homeless mdrvudual or family’s ability to obtam;
and retain housing.

[os
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9.3.3.10.

9.3.3.11.

9.3.3.12.

9.3.3.13.

19.3.3.14.

9.3.3.15.
9.3.3.16.

9.3.3.17.

§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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EXHIBIT C

Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life
management skills that may never have been learned or have'
been lost during course of physical or mental illness, domestic
violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program
participant to function independently in the community.
Component life skills training are the budgeting of resources
and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items,
nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent training.

Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided by
licensed prefessionals. Component services are crisis
interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications;
and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

Outpatient health .services. Eligible costs are the direct
outpatient treatment of medical conditions when provided by
licensed medical professionals.

Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons -
for the purpose of providing immediate support and -
intervention, as well as identifying potential program
participants, are eligible.

Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group
and individual counseling, and drug testing are eligible.
Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible.

Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for
utility deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly
to utility companies.

Direct provision of services. If a service, described as eligible
in these Payment Terms, is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services also
include the following: "

8.3.3.17.1. The costs of labor or supplies, and materials
incurred by the recipient or subreci ientin directly
(v

.
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9.3.4.

9.3.5.

9.3.6.

9.3.7.

9.3.8.

9.3.9.

9.3.10.

9.3.11.

$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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EXHIBITC
providing supportive *:se'rvices to program
participants.

9.3.3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of the recipient
and subrecipient staff who "directly deliver the
services.

Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for Individuals,' youth, and
families experiencing homelessness.

Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving
rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal, State, or
local sources.

Rental assistance shall be administiered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and may be:

9.3.6.1. Short term, up to 3. months of rent;
93.6.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or
9.3.6.3. Long-term, for ionger than 24 months.

Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rént.

An advance payment of the last month’s rent may be provided to the
landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent.

Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each
unit.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage fo housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Property damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security deposits.

Housing shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

‘ :ns
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9.3.12. The Conlractor shall provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

9.3.12.1.

9.3.12.2.

9.3.12.3.

9.3.124.

Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants choose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside. When necessary to facilitate the coordination
of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in-a specific area for their
entire period of participation, or in a specific ‘structure for the
first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their period
of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component
must be tenant based rental assistance.

Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor
may be a private, nonprofit organization, or a community
mental health agency established as a public nonprofit
organization. "Program participants must reside in housing
owned or leased by the sponsor.

Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract
with the owner of an existing structure, where the owner
agrees to lease the subsidized units to program participants.
Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance, program participants must enter into a lease
agreement for a term of at least one year, which is terminable
for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long,
except on prior notice by either party.

94.  Administrative Costs:
9.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

9.4.1.1.

$8-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-D1
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The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for
the payment of project administrative costs related to the
planning and execution of Continuum of Care activities. This
does not include staff and overhead costs directly related to
carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through
578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of those

activities.
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(vt

5/26/2023

c-2.0 Contractor Inltiats



DocuSign Envelope I1D: C24AB2EE-CEAS-42BD-8D53-5C85E25EE2D4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

EXHIBIT C

Continuum of Care CLM

8.4.1.2

General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of

overall program management, coordination, monitoring and
evaluation. These costs include, but are not limited to,
necessary expenditures for the following:

9.4.1.21. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the
Contractor's staff, or other staff engaged in
. program administration.
9.4.1.2.2. - In charging costs to this category, the Contractor
may include the entire salary, wages, and related
costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the
program  involve program  administration
) assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose
job includes any program administration
assignments. The Contractor may only usé one of
these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following:
9.4.1.2.21. Preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to
) those budgets and schedules.
9.4.1.2.22. Developing systems for assuring
compliance with program
requirements.
9.41.2.2.3. Developing interagency
agreemenis and agreements with
subrecipient and Contractors to
carry out program activities. '
i 9.41.224. Monitoring program activities for
. progress and compliance with
program requirements:
9.4.1.2.2.5. Preparing reports and other
documents related to the program
for submission to HUD.
9.4.1.2.2,6. Coordinating the solution of audit
+ and monitoring findings.
9.41.22.7. Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the
program submission to HUD.,
D3
(v
§5-2024-DBH-12-CONTH-O1 C-2.0 Contragtor Initials
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Continuum of Care CLM
EXHIBIT C

9.41.2.2.8.

9.4.1.229.

9.4.1.2.210.

9.4.1.2.2.11,

94.1.2.212.

9.4.1.2.2.13.

9.4.1.2.2.14.

9.5. Leasing:

Evaluating program results. against
stated objectives. ;

Managing or supervising persans
whose primary responsibilities are
among those program
administration assignments, as
listed immediately above.

Travel costs incurred for official
business in carrying out the
program..

Administrative services performed
under third. party contracts or
agreements. including such
services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit
services.’

Other costs for goods and services
required for administration of the
program, including such goods and
services as -rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities,
office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of
office space.

Training on Continuum of Care
requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum  of Care
trainings.

Environmental review. Costs of
carrying out the environmental
review responsibiliies under 24
CFR 578.31.

9.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant
funds may be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a
structure or structures, or portions thereof, to provide housing or
supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years. Leasing

funds may not be used to lease

$5-2024-08H-12-CONTI-01 c-20

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire  Page 13 of 15
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New Hampsl{ire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care CLM

EXHIBITC

contractor, their parent organization, any other related organization(s), or
organizations. that aré members of a partnership, where the partnership
owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

9.5.2. Requirements:

9.5.2.1.

9.5.2.2.

9.5.2.3.

9.5.2.4.

9.5.2.5.
9.5.2.6.
9.52.7.

9.5.2.8.

§§-2024-DBH-12-CONTIO1

The Mental Health Center for Southam New Hampshire  Page 14 of 15

D8A Center for Life Management

Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or
part of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be
reasonable in relation to rents being charged in the area for
comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for
comparable unassisted space. -

Leasing individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay
rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable
in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking
into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may
not exceed rents currentiy being charged for comparable units,
and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market
rents.

Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent,
these utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not
provided by the landlord, these utility costs are operating costs,
except for supportive service facilities. if the structure is being
used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are
a supportive service cost.

Security deposits and first and last month’s rent. The
Contractor may use grant funds to pay security deposits, in an
amount not to exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance
payment of last month’s rent may be provided to the landlord
in addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's
rent.

Occupancy agreements and subleases._ Occupancy
agreements and subleases are required as specified in 24
CFR §78.77(a). N

Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy
charges and rent from program participants must be calculated
as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program income and may he used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8). @

C-2.0 Contraclor Initials

Date 5/26/2023
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Continuum of Care CLM

9.5.2.9.

9.5.2.10.
9.5.2.11.
| 9.5.2.12.
8.5.2.13.

9.5.2.14.

EXHIBIT C

Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be
reasonable in comparisoh to rents charged in the area for
similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness
must be kept on file by the Contractor.

The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
determined fair market rents.

The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds
may not be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the
landiord for security deposits.

The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to
itself.

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other requirements of the
jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or
services. . -

9.6 -The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).
However, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified
in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77). Other services such as ‘cable, air
conditioning, telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are
at the participant's option.

9.7. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract, or
counted as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

10. Contractor Financial Management System

10.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor. -

10.2. The Contractor shall maintain a firancial management system that complies with
- 2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

. -$5-2024-DBH-12-CONTI-01
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CEﬁTiFICAT!ON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the pravisions of
Seclions 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.100-590, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: ’

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-6160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certificalion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630{c} of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Depariment in each federal fiscal vear in lieu of certificates for
each grant.during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below isa
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the centification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
sendifto. ' :

Commissioner ’
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cerifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for viclation of such
prohibition;

1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2.  The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabifitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.24. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; ’

1.3, Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notlify the emplayer in writing of his ar her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statule occurring in the workplace no later than fivé calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofticer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federallﬁagen cy

‘ P

" Exhibit D - Centification regarding Drug Free Vendor Inltials .
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such nolices. Notice shall include the

identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respecl lo any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriale personne! action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as-
amended; or )

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfaclorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or [ocal health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency,;

1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to. maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6,

2. Thegrantee may insert in lhe space provided below the site(s} for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: c1m

DocuSigned by:
5/26/2023 l \Ac 1‘31,,,
Date ' Name: V1€ 18po

Title:

ced

C
Exhibit D ~ Cerification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials’
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to camply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees lo have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A
*Child Support Enfarcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
‘Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Tite IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or-on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. lfany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 10 any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a8 Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conlract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l)

3. The undersigned shall require that the Iaﬁguage of this certification be included in the award
decument for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall cerlify and disclose accordingly,

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making &r enlering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.8. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: clm

- DocuSigned by:

5/26/2023 Ue Tope
Date ame. 0
Title: ceo _
:os
Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying Verider Iniats
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! CERT!FICAT!ON REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Execulive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contracior's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Centification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below,

2, The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, |f necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this fransaction. However, failure of the praspective primary
participant 1o fumish a certification or an exp!anatlon shall disgualify such persaon from participation in
this transaction,

3. The certification in this clause is'a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction.. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition lo other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaclion for cause or default. v

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erronedus when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. .

5. The terms "covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” "Imlc\ver tier covered
transaction,” participant person " “primary covered transaction,” “pnncnpal ” “proposal,” and Lo
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part'76.. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospeclive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, In¢ligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all soficitations for lower tier covered transactlions. .

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knéws that the certification is erroneous. A parlicipant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibifity of ifs principals. Eath
‘participant miay, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of recéor.ds
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause, The knowledge and[ A”

Exhbll F - Certificaion Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initlals Y—
. And Other Resporsibility Matiers 5/26/2023
CLDHHEM 10712 Page1of2 Dale
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information of a participant is not required 10 exceed that which is normaily posséssed by a prudént
‘person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these insiructions, .if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in-this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.4. -are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (coniract) b&en convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {Federal, State or local)
transaction or a confract under a public transaction; viclation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity ~
{Federal, State or local) with commissian of any of the cffenses enumerated in paragraph (I){b)
of this cerification; and .
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions {Federal, State or focal) terminated for cause or-default, '

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the stalements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ' .
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower fier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pait 76, certifies o the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
*13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospsactive lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective padicipant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract),

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {cantract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Centlification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Valuntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in"all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier coverad transactions.

Coniractor Name: cIm

- DecuSigned by;
5/26/2023 @L 0
“Date ' WV;?%O
e

Title:
ceo

C
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials a
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANGE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS o

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3-of the General Provisions ‘agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the {ollowing
certification: ’

Conlractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Ominibus Crime Control and Safe Straets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federa! funding under this statute from discriminaling, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; :

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U1.5.C, Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national erigin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (28 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disatllities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations = OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R.pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations ~ Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Autharization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upoﬁ which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment,
bs
Exhibit G | W
Contractor Initials d———
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agericy makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. -By signing and subr-nitting this propesal (contract) the Contractor agrees fo comj-)!y with the provisions

indicated above.
Contractor Name: ¢Im
b Doqulignad by:
5/26/2023 [I;{{, T\"F"
Date Name: Vie Topo
. Title: ceo
bs
Exhibit G ‘ Vf‘
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- “ i . *  CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE
‘h\\_ — . R

Pubii@1.631227;fPart.c.,,-Environmental~Tobacco_ Smoke, aiso known as the Pro-Children Aci of 1994
—— 7. = (Act), requires'that smaking not be permitted in a ortion of any indoor facility owned or leaséd-or
- . \contra_gggd for by an entily and-used routinely or regularly-tor the provision of health, day care, education,
‘ or library Services to_children under the age.of-18, if the services are funded by Federa! programs either___
directly or through State or local-governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee., The
. Jaw:does not.apply.to children’s services provided in private TeSideaces, facilities funded solely by — ~ ™
i ‘Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciiities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of 2 civiLmonetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the-responsible entity,
e e - - — e -
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the-General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
fepresentative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12°of the General Provisions, fo execute the following
cerification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name: c1m

5/26/2023
Date

’ . DS
Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials L
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
' BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability-Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Sécurity of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45.
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor-that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definltions. .
a. Breach” shall have the Same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. Business Associate”has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

. Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501, '

¥

f.  “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. _HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recévery and Reinvestment Act of
2009,

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. ! .

t. "Individual® shall have the same meaning as the term' “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). :

j "Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parls 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” ‘shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv@

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

2014 ! Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portabillty Act
Business Assoclate Agreement 5/26/2023
Page 10f8 ’ Date
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(2)

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103. ‘

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Befinitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH . : .
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure .of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary {o provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not timited to ali
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity. .

To the éxtent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disciose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
‘used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHl in response to a
request for disclosure on'the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure;J and
to seek appropriate relief. if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bus'fis}?\

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portabllity Act
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{3)

372014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all

remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be-bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shali not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Ob!igations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heaith information and/or any security incident that may have an impact-on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

_ limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized persen used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; .

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

© mitigated. .

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in wiiting to the
Covered Entity. ‘ ’

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. .

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access fo PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same )
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assggiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivifg\%;{l

Exhibis | Contractor Initials -
Health Insurance Porlabllity Act
Business Assodiate Agreement 5/26/2023
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_ pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such

business associates who shall be‘governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of

" protected health Informatlon

Within five (5} business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individualin order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorparate any such-amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526,

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and informiation related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PH! in accordance with 46 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHl in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Cavered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) husiness days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PH! ‘
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thg
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business|"

Exhibit | Contractor Initials >
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(4)

(6)
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s} in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's

use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revacation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause_ .

In addition to Paragréph' 10 of the standard terms and conditioris (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous.

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as’in effect or as
amended.

Amendment, Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Secuwrity Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Conlractor Initials
Heallh Insutance Portability Acl
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e . Segregation: If any.term or condition of this Exhibit | orthe application thereof to any
person(s} or circurnstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable,

f Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3} 1, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section {3} e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard'terms dnd conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Depariment of Health-and Human Services cIm
b by ' sgsphtbe Contractor

| Balja S. Fop Ve Tope

Signature of Authorized Representative  Signature of Authorized Representalive
Katja s. Fox vic Topo

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director

ceo

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
5/30/2023 5/26/2023

Date Date

' ) ) E os
32014 Exhibit | Condractor Injtials

Health Insurance Portablity Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/26/2023
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1

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNBGING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY.
B " ACT {FFATA) COMPLIANCE .

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and asscgiated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a totat award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Seivices (DHHS) must report the foltowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Mame of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency .

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performanca
Unique identifier of the entity (UEi #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if. )
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are frorn the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC,

Mol

S0~

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in-which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera| Provisions
execute the following Cerification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: c1m

DocuSignad by
5/26/2023 ! Ue Tops
Date - ‘Name.V -

Titler  ¢eo
]
Exhiblt J - Certificaion Regarding the Federa! Funding Contractor lnitla!sC-
Aceountability Ang Transparency Act (FFATA) Comptiance 5/26/2023
CUDHHSM 10713 Fage 1of2 . . Date .
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FORM A
As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | ceftify that the respanses to the
below {isted questions are true and accurate.,

1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: 2bBON712724

2. In your business or organization's precediné completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, éubgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? ‘

X NO YES
If the answer o #2 above is NOQ, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through pericdic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1834 (15 U.5.C.78m{a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 '

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
Ifthe answer to #3 above Is ND, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in"your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: — Amount: . :
Name: _ . Amount: N
Name:____ Amount.,
Name: . _ Amount:
Name:. : Amount:.. .
C
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Fadaral Fu nding Contractor Infials d——u
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance . $/26/2023
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations,

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident™ in section two (2) of NIST Publication ‘800-681, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce. :

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personaily ldentifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User” means any person or éntity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, efc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance 'with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident’ means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes 1o system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's Knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting ‘of physical or elecit}_rsonic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contracter Inttials
OHHS tnformation : ' .
Security Requirements 5/26/2023
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o

10.

11.

12,

mail, all of which mayhaye the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized

access, use, disclosure, modifisation.or destruction. T T

~
“‘Open Wireless Network” means any Retwark or.segment of a network™that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's -Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and”
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. '

“Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:18, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Information™ (or *PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CF.R. §
160.103. :

“Security Rule™ shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A, Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.

2.

The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to ali its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

[»):}
V5. Last update 10/00/18 Exhibil K Contractor infiials ___E-
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DPHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

ll. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. if End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if

-email is engcrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of

persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypls data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Cenfidential Data. :

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypled and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

D3
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10.

11,

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote commumcatton to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User’s mobile device(s) or laptop from wh:ch information will be
transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), als-:)sknown as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End- User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting' Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS .

The Contractor will only retain the data and.any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law, or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States, This physical location requirement shzll also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data-and Disaster:Recovery locations.

2. The Contraclor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4, The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data

. in a secure location and identified in section IV, A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers.and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened opeérating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

C
V5. Last updale 10/09/18 ' Exhibit K .- Contractor Initiats

‘DHHS Information :
Security Requiraments $/26/2023
Page 4 of 8 Date



DacuSign Envelope 1D: C24ABZEE-CEAS-42BD-8D53-5CB5E25EE2D4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its comp!ele cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1.

If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Informiation on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination;- and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media contalnmg State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure ‘wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or -olherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, u. s
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where agplicable,
regulatory and proféssional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Confract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.

The Contractor will malntain proper security controls to protect Depariment
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the dellvery
of contracted services,

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, {from
creation,” transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data {i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

:na
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The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential mformatlon

where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems andfor
Dapartment confidential information for contracior provided systems.

The Contractor will pravide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Depariment confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement

supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

program of an intemal process or -processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at 2 minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department systém access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized. ‘

If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45

. CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

10

11.

(BAA} with the Department and is responsible for malntalnmg compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Depariment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the bolUndaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any ‘damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor‘all costs of response and recovery from

:Ds
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13.

14,

15.

16.

the breach, inciuding but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailiﬂhﬁ'—cb‘ﬁs and
costs associated with websile and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes’and regulations regarding the”
privacy and sscurity of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the devel and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45

C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health

information and as applicable under State faw.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex_htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors,

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach nofification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implementéd to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadverient disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

ensure that laplops .and other electronic devices/media containing PH!, PI, or
PFlare encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

DHHS Information

Security Requirements 5/26/2023
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and mdmdually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons-
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.). .

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, mcludmg any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be mdintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances-involved.

i. understand that their user credentiais (user name and_password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site dlrectly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is respensible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer 'and Security Officer of any
* Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI<n
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: ‘

1. ldentify Incidents; ‘

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from amorig different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any. mitigation
measures. '

Incidents and/or .Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. * PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffi ce@dhhs nh.gov
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